
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Scrutiny Board 
14 June 2022 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Council Chamber  - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton WV1 1SH 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Paul Sweet (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Ellis Turrell (Con) 
 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Val Evans 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Cllr Zee Russell 
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN 
Cllr Louise Miles 
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman 
 

Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Simon Bennett 
Cllr Udey Singh 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Scrutiny Team: 

Contact Martin Stevens 
Tel/Email martin.stevens@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Scrutiny Office, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 555046 

 

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Agenda 
 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.] 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
4 Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate Complaints & Compliments 

Report 2021-2022 (Pages 11 - 34) 
 [To receive an update from Sarah Campbell, Customer Engagement Manager]. 

 

5 Select Committee Report: The Wolverhampton Pound (Pages 35 - 82) 
 [To receive the Select Committee Report on, The Wolverhampton Pound].   

 

6 Date of next meeting  
 The date of the next scheduled meeting of the Scrutiny Board is Tuesday, 6 

September 2022 at 6pm.   
 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Scrutiny Board 
Minutes - 22 March 2022 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Scrutiny Board 
 
Cllr Paul Sweet (Chair) 
Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Val Evans (V) 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Simon Bennett (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar 
Cllr John Reynolds 
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Cllr Zee Russell 
Cllr Ellis Turrell 
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN 
 

 
In Attendance 
 
Sarah Middleton - Chief Executive, Black Country Consortium Ltd  
Professor Delma Dwight - Director of Black Country Economic Intelligence Unit, Black 
Country Consortium Ltd & Director of Midlands Engine Observatory 
John Roseblade – Director for City Housing and Environment 
Karen Beasley - Service Manager – Housing Strategy & Policy 
Sarah Campbell – Customer Engagement Manager 
Julia Cleary - Scrutiny and Systems Manager 
Martin Stevens – Senior Governance Manager 
Earl Piggott Smith – Scrutiny Officer 
 
 

 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Asha Mattu. 
 

2 Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3 Minutes of the previous meetings 

Resolved: That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a correct 

record and signed by the Chair. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

4 Economic update and snapshot of the Black Country and City of 
Wolverhampton 
 
The Chair welcomed Sarah Middleton, Chief Executive, Black Country Consortium 
Ltd and Professor Delma Dwight, Director of Black Country Economic Intelligence 
Unit, Black Country Consortium Ltd & Director of Midlands Engine Observatory, to 
the meeting.  
 
An overview was provided in relation to: 
 

 the evidence led vision and economic intelligence 

 the approach being taken 

 an economic overview of Wolverhampton and the Black Country  

 developing a Green Infrastructure  

 developing a tree strategy 

 Black Country Canal Strategy 

 Black Country partnership support  

 capital investments 

 Black Country partnership support - Active Black Country 

 Commonwealth Games 

Scrutiny Board received a presentation regarding the above areas.  
 
The Annual Economic Review Report set out the key measures of success in the 
Black Country Performance Management Framework.  There were 12 strategic 
programmes covering the three themes of People, Place and Business and six 
priority areas for proposition development: 
 

 High Value Manufacturing City;  

 Black Country Business Competitiveness; 

 Economic Capital;  

 Black Country as Garden City;  

 Skills for Business, Skills for Life;  

 Connected Black Country. 

There was a spatial approach which included an in-depth analysis of pipeline 
opportunities in 11 identified spatial zones. There was also a detailed programme of 
dashboards including: 
 

 Overall Priority Pipeline; 

 Growth Funds; 

 Land Remediation Fund (WMCA); 

 Broadband. 

Priorities for the Black Country Consortium Economic Intelligence Unit included 
providing rigorous, best in class, economic analysis and place based compelling 
narrative; In-depth Labour Market Intelligence; Business Competitiveness – Growing 
our Business Base and Green transformation. Key achievements to date were a 
skills deep dive, sector action plans Geopark support, an iTree eco study and a canal 
strategy. 
 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Comparative statistical information was provided in relation to economic performance 
in Wolverhampton in comparison with the Black Country.  Sector risks relating to 
Covid-19 and Brexit were considered by the Board.  
 
Board understood that the recovery plan included: 
 

 Backing Black Country Businesses; 

 Delivering Skills for Today and the Future;  

 Nurturing Green Growth; 

 Creating Vibrant, Safe and Healthy Places;  

 Mobilising Devolution and Public Service Reform. 

The Chair thanked the officers for the presentation and noted that there were some 
good figures where Wolverhampton appeared to be bucking the trend in some areas 
but that there were still some clear challenges remaining.  
 
Board considered the Black Country Canal Strategy and the tender exercise that had 
been carried out and the proposals and plan.  It was noted there had been a tender 
for some consultative support funded through the Local Enterprise Partnership and 
the Canal and River Trust and that an appointment had now been made. The project 
was now starting to get underway with a series of workshops to ensure that, from a 
grassroots point of view the different opportunities that the strategy would be able to 
provide were understood.  
 
One of the approaches being advocated was to ensure that the heritage 
infrastructure was clearly recognised, and that consideration was given to the 
economic and health benefits that could be achieved. There was a young steering 
group in place, with health partners, local authorities, the Consortium and the Canal 
and River Trust. Board considered that there would be opportunities that might exist 
in Wolverhampton and that it was important for local groups to be consulted for their 
thoughts, visions, and experiences as this would make the strategy much stronger.  
 
Board noted that there were some very challenging areas for the city and noted that 
there had been a rise in Universal Credit claimants in Wolverhampton and queried 
what the reasons for this might be. 
 
Board considered the Tree Strategy and noted that there were some good figures in 
the presentation relating to the value of the urban forest. Board agreed the 
importance of the Tree Strategy but considered that it also pointed to more 
questions. Board welcomed the understanding of planting the right tree in the right 
place. Board noted the importance of green spaces as being therapeutic and 
important for people's wellbeing. Board agreed that to see green space was very 
important for children and for them to be able to have play areas in green space. 
Board considered that this could be highlighted more in the report. 
 
Board was pleased to hear that apprenticeships were increasing but emphasised that 
industry and businesses were having a very difficult time with areas such as a 
construction struggling to get the raw materials they needed. It was agreed that 
additional sector analysis information would be shared with the Board after the 
meeting.  
 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

In relation to the Active Black Country Partnership, Board queried whether listings 
and rankings were still being kept as it would be useful to have a comparison with 
previous years as to the Wolverhampton statistics. Board considered that it was 
important to understand whether performance had improved so that we could 
develop our policies in the City in the best way possible. It was confirmed that 
additional information in relation to the tracking of the active life survey and 
performance monitoring could be provided and the figures circulated.  
 
Board welcomed the progress being made in relation to the Commonwealth Games 
but queried whether the legacy aspect of the Commonwealth Games had already 
been mapped out and how the infrastructure would be used moving forwards. It was 
confirmed that in relation to the legacy ambitions for the Commonwealth Games that 
there was a framework in place that could be shared with the Board members.  In 
relation to sports clubs, the Active Black Country Partnership did work with these 
clubs but was to a certain extent, constrained by the resources made available 
through Sport England.  There had been more positive discussions with Sport 
England about the necessity for them to increase the level of investment across all 
Black Country local authorities because as there had been an under-investment in 
terms of trying to ensure this type of community-based infrastructure. 
 
The Director of City Housing and Environment commented that the Local Authority 
Green Space Strategy was currently being refreshed and could be considered by the 
appropriate Scrutiny Panel it requested.  
 
Resolved: That the presentation and update be noted and received. 
 

5 Quarter 2 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report 2021-
2022 
The Customer Engagement Manager provided an overview of the Quarter Two 
Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints report for the following areas: 
 

 Corporate  

 Children’s and Education 

 Adults and Public Health 

 Ombudsman enquiries  

In relation to Corporate Stage One Complaints, there had been 262 informal 
complaints, Board noted that service request enquiries were logged with the 
customer feedback team. This was in comparison to 287 received during 1 July 2020 
to 30 September 2020. The Council had received 32 stage one corporate complaints 
compared to 73 received during 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020; a decrease of 41 
cases. Out of the 32 cases logged and investigated, 15 cases were upheld (at fault) 
and 17 not upheld (not at fault).  
 
The highest figure of 13 complaints referred to Waste Management, followed jointly 
by Planning and Revenues and Benefits both receiving four cases.  
Learning from complaints was outlined in Appendix 4 and it was confirmed that the 
Complaints Team worked closely with services to improve complaint handling and to 
ensure appropriate remedies were put in place to achieve the best outcomes for 
customers. 
 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

If a customer remained dissatisfied, they could escalate to stage two of the 
complaints procedure. During this period the council had received five stage two 
corporate complaints compared to six cases for 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020, 
which was a decrease of one case. Out of the five cases received, two cases were 
upheld (at fault) and three cases not upheld (not at fault).  
 
In relation to Children’s and Education Stage One Complaints, 25 informal 
complaints had been received during 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021, which 
compared to nine informal complaints received during 1 July 2020 to 30 September 
2020; an increase of 16 cases. The Council had received 11 stage one Children’s 
and Education Services complaints compared to eight during 1 July 2020 to 30 
September 2020, an increase of three cases. Out of the 11 cases received, Children 
and Young People in Care received the highest number of four cases, followed jointly 
by SEND and Fostering Team. In some cases, this had followed extensive but 
unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those complaints informally.   
 
No statutory stage two complaints were received during this period; which was in 
comparison to no complaint cases received during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020. The 
Council received five children’s and education stage two complaints which were dealt 
with in accordance with the corporate complaints policy and procedure.  This was in 
comparison to no cases received during 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020. Out of 
the five cases received two cases were upheld and three cases were not upheld. 
During 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021 no complaints escalated to a stage three 
panel during this period; this was in comparison to no stage three cases during 1 July 
2020 to 30 September 2020.  
 
No complaints were received for Public Health; which was in comparison to one 
complaint received during 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020. The council received 
17 informal complaints which were resolved at service level without going through 
the formal route. This was compared to 12 informal complaints received during 1 July 
2020 to 30 September 2020, an increase of five cases. The council received 11 
formal complaints compared to six during 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020, 
representing an increase of five cases during this period.  The highest figure of two 
cases referred to both MASH and West Locality Team. Out of the 11 complaint cases 
received, one case escalated to stage two under the corporate complaints policy and 
procedure. 
 
The council had received eight Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
(LGSCO) assessment enquiries and five Housing Ombudsman (HO) assessment full 
enquiries. The council received one enquiry from the (LGSCO) for Adult Services 
and Communities as follows:  
 

 Adult Services and Communities received one complaint in relation to the 

council’s lack of prompt action when concerns were raised about carers; 

outcome upheld, maladministration and injustice; as outlined in the 

Ombudsman’s report appropriate recommendations, remedies and learning 

have been carried out. 

 

 

 

The council received one enquiry from the HO for Wolverhampton Homes as follows: 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 One enquiry received in relation to the landlord’s response to a request for 

redecoration; outcome customer has requested a review of the HO’s decision; 

therefore the council is awaiting the HO’s final report 

Board understood that when a complaint was upheld (council at fault) and the 
findings of a subsequent investigation was for a financial remedy, change to policy or 
service delivery, that the Customer Feedback Team produced an action plan report. 
Recommendations within these reports were agreed with appropriate Heads of 
Service and shared with the relevant Service Manager to ensure appropriate 
remedies and changes were implemented. The Customer Feedback Team also 
attended regular quality assurance meetings for Adults Services, Children’s Services 
and Waste Liaison Meetings to ensure that the learning from complaints was used to 
drive service improvements. 
 
Board understood that the management of unreasonable complainant behaviour 
procedure had been active since February 2015.  During this period, the Customer 
Feedback Team had managed a total of two cases in line with this procedure. The 
Customer Feedback Team had compiled mandatory corporate complaint training and 
children’s complaint handling for council officers, which was available via the 
council’s learning hub.   The team was currently working with the Council’s 
organisational development team and would be compiling an online training module 
for adult’s complaint handling; which would be launched during 2021-2022. 
 
Board noted that the Customer Feedback Team had received a total of 210 
compliments (social care and corporate) for this period. 
 
Board expressed some concern in relation to the time spent on resolving some of the 
complaints in relation to childrens services as some of these might require prompt 
action. It was confirmed that if a safeguarding issue had been identified that this 
would be actioned appropriately and that in other cases, weekly reminders were sent 
out to services to make sure that they were proactively investigating the complaints.  
 

Board also noted that there would always be a number of people who didn't, for 
whatever reason decide to make a complaint in the first place or couldn't get through 
on the phones, so the actual number of dissatisfied customers could be higher.  
 
Board considered that it would be useful to have further details in relation to the two 
stage 2 complaints that were upheld. 
 
Resolved: That the update be received and noted.  
 

6 Regulator of Social Housing Consumer Standards - Compliance Update 2022 
A report was submitted requesting Board to consider and provide comment and 
feedback in relation to the Council’s Housing Strategy Landlord Services Team in 
relation to the progress made against the Consumer Standards set by the Regulator 
of Social Housing.  
 
The report provided an oversight of the monitoring arrangements of the management 
of the Council's housing stock carried out by the Managing Agents, Wolverhampton 
Homes and three Tenant Management Organisations, and outlined the steps being 
taken by the Landlord Services Team to ensure the Council was able to respond to 

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

increasing regulation and was prepared for inspection by the Regulator of Social 
Housing. 
 
The management of the majority of the Council’s housing stock was transferred to its 
newly formed Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Wolverhampton 
Homes (WH) in 2005 for the delivery of the Decent Homes programme.  The rest of 
the stock was managed by Tenant Management Organisations (TMOs). The 
management functions carried out by the managing agents was governed by the 
management agreements (Modular Management Agreements in the case of the 
TMOs) that existed between the Council and each managing agent. The next break 
clause in the management agreement between the Council and Wolverhampton 
Homes, who managed the majority of the Council’s housing stock was in 2023 and 
the TMOs were reviewed annually. 
 
 
Board considered that it was important to increase tenant involvement in the decision 
making processes. Board understood that there were HMOs that managed the 
properties but that they didn’t actually get the money to manage the community and 
that it might be beneficial to hand over more resource to so the HMOs could have 
some additional autonomy.  Board considered that actions did appear to be going in 
the right direction and that it would be useful to have an update on progress to a 
future meeting.  It was confirmed that a new a new tenant scrutiny committee had 
been appointed and was due to start work at the beginning of April.  Board welcomed 
this but emphasised the need to involve the tenants that were living in the properties.   
 
Board considered that some of the issues were due to isolated houses and 
properties and issues like fencing disputes and noise issues. Board considered that it 
would be worthwhile knowing which properties did and did not fall under a specific 
organisation so that appropriate action could be taken.  
 
Board queried why the report and actions had taken so long to come before 
councillors. It was stated that the report was completed in May 2021 and that the 
findings had been presented to the Council in July 2021. A Housing report had been 
considered by the scrutiny in September 2021 and since then the team had been 
working through the actions and working with Wolverhampton Homes to look 
improvements.  
 
Board raised some concerns in relation to section 4.2 of the report: 
The panel are also recommended to note the responsibilities of Councillors with 
regard to the Consumer Standards, in particular the requirements to: 
  

 Maintain an oversight of the housing stock  

 Understand the performance of the managing agents  

 Understand the compliance and legislative requirements  

 Receive annual reports on performance and compliance  

 Quarterly monitoring to Cabinet  
 

And to raise any concerns regarding performance or compliance with Housing 
Strategy. 

 
Board questioned how this would be achieved with all 60 members of the Council as 
there was already a large reliance on the people who carried out the various roles in 

Page 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

the housing ream. It was noted that councillors already had a heavy involvement in 
housing matters which included applications for housing and matters relating to the 
standards that people were living in. Board was keen to understand how the points 
referred to in the report were going to be maintained and managed. Board noted that 
the report gave councillors a specific responsibility and considered that this needed 
to be made explicit to all new and existing councillors.  
 
The Director for City Housing and Environment stated that the ultimate responsibility 
would be borne by the Cabinet and the Cabinet Member for Housing. Therefore, as 
part of the governance that was proposed and the monitoring and accountability 
there would be quarterly performance reports. These reports would be within the 
public domain and available for scrutiny to consider. These regular updates would 
not only provide information on progress against the plan but there was also a wide 
suite of performance indicators, which would be regularly monitored. One of the key 
areas the reporting would be looking at was the Council’s relationship with 
Wolverhampton Homes and the TMOs. 
 
Board considered that Housing was such an important area in the Council and for 
residents and that as a function of the Council some Board members considered that 
having a stand-alone director responsible for housing should be considered. Board 
also considered that the high number of working groups and subgroups could be 
detrimental to progress and requested that this be taken into consideration moving 
forwards.  
 
Resolved: That the report be received. 
 

7 Annual Scrutiny Review 2020-2021 
 
The Scrutiny and Systems Manager presented the Annual Scrutiny Review to the 
Board. The Review highlighted some of the key achievements of the Scrutiny 
function over the 2020-2021 municipal year including details of the progress and 
outcomes from a selection of panel meetings. 
 
Board considered that moving forward it would be beneficial to have more 
engagement with residents throughout the scrutiny function. 
 
Resolved:  1. That Scrutiny Board endorse the Annual Scrutiny Review 2020-

2021  
2. Recommend the Annual Scrutiny Review 2020-2021 be received at 
Full Council on 6 April 2022. 

 
8 Work Planning 

 
Board considered the Work Programme.  
 
Resolved: That the Work Programme be noted.  
 

Page 10



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 
  

 

Scrutiny Board 
14 June 2022 
 

  
Report title Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate 

Complaints & Compliments Report 2021-2022 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Cabinet Member for Governance 
 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer 

Originating service Information Governance, Customer Feedback 

Accountable employee(s) Sarah Campbell 

Tel 

Email 

Customer Engagement Manager 

01902 551090 

sarah.campbell@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Leadership Teams - 

Finance, Governance, Regeneration, 

Joint Adult, Children’s & Education, 

Public Health, City Housing & 

Environment, City Asset & Housing, 

People and Change 

 

 

 

 

May 2022 

 

 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 
1. Review complaints management and performance for the period 1 October 2021 to 31 

December 2021. 
 

Recommendations for noting: 
 
The Scrutiny Board is asked to note: 

 
1. The Statutory Complaints Activity for Children’s Services, Education Services, Adult 

Services and Public Health, as detailed in Appendix 3 (Section 1).   
2. All the other complaints activity governed by the Corporate Complaints Procedures as 

detailed in Appendix 3 (Section 2). 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item No: 4



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 The Council’s Customer Feedback Team handles complaints, compliments and service 

enquiries from members of the public.  Those relating to children’s, adults and public 
health matters fall under a statutory framework, while the remainder are handled under 
the council’s corporate policy and procedures. 

 
1.2 This report provides an overview of the complaints, including Local Government and 

Social Care/Housing Ombudsman enquiries received during 1 October 2021 to 31 
December 2021. 

 
2.0 Attachments  
 
2.1 Appended to this covering report are the following documents: 
 
 Appendix 1 – Statutory Social Care Customer Feedback Dashboard  
 Appendix 2 – Corporate Customer Feedback Dashboard  
 Appendix 3 – Notes to the dashboard – Statutory (Section 1); Corporate (Section 2), 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) and Housing Ombudsman 
(HO) 

 Appendix 4 – Learning from stage one complaints and compliments (corporate, social 
care and public health) 

3.0 Complaint Training  

3.1 The Customer Feedback Team has compiled mandatory corporate complaint training 
and children’s complaint handling for council officers, which is available via the 
council’s learning hub.   The team is currently working with the Council’s organisational 
development team and is compiling an online training module for Adult’s complaint 
handling; this will be launched during 2021-2022.  

4.0   Monitoring Information 

4.1 There are no concerns with the data analysis or evidence of any groups being 
disproportionately affected.  The Council, being under the Public-Sector Equality Duty 
must, on an on- going basis, consider how its policies are working for the diverse 
communities a Council serves. 

5.0 Managing Unreasonable Customer Behaviour Procedure 

5.1 The management of unreasonable complainant behaviour procedure has been active 
since February 2015.  During this period, the Customer Feedback Team has managed a 
total of two cases in line with this procedure. 

6.0 Complaint Policy/Procedures  

  The customer feedback team carries out regular reviews of the council’s corporate 
complaints policy and Children’s, Adults and Public Health complaint procedures to 

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

reflect current working practices and legislation.  All policies and procedures are 
presented to the relevant leadership teams and democratic panel/board for approval.   

 

7.0 Financial Implications 

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendation in this 
report. [GE/29042022/J] 

8.0    Legal Implications 

8.1     The statutory complaints procedure must comply with various statutes. These include: 

 Children and Family Services - The Children Act 1989, Representations 
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.  The Local Authority functions covered 
include services provided under Parts III, IV and V of the Children Act 1989 

 Adult Social Care – The Local Authority Social Services and National Health 
Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009; which came into force on 
1 April 2009. 

 Public Health - The NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, 
Care Trusts, Public Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

  Legal Code: [TC/03052022/A]  

9.0    Equalities Implications 

9.1 There are no equalities implications associated with this report. 

10.0   Environmental Implications 
 
10.1 There are no environmental implications associated with this report. 
 
11.0   Human Resources Implications 
 
11.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
 
12.0   Corporate Landlord Implications 
 
12.1 There are no corporate landlord implications associated with this report. 
 
13.0 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 
13.1 The complaints element of the social care and corporate procedure is part of a wider 

assurance process supporting quality in service delivery standards.  This can then be a 
positive experience for customers and contribute to their health and well-being.  For 
those occasions where the experience which has led to a complaint is a less positive 
one, then there is an opportunity for appropriate action or redress so that the health and 

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

well-being of the complainant and/or relevant others is secured.  The compliments 
process allows customers to note great practice by the Council; positive experience of 
officers working in many different settings will support improved experience of health and 
well-being for individuals as well as for staff who can be satisfied that their work is 
appreciated. 

14.0    Covid Implications 

14.1 There are no Covid implications arising from the recommendation(s) of this report.  
 
15.0   Schedule of Background Papers 
 
15.1 None for consideration. 

 

 

 

Page 14



Stage 1 Complaints 
Received 

See Appendix 3 (1.2)

10

Average Complaint 
Response Time  

See Appendix 3 (1.3)
Complaints where the Council is at 

fault (Upheld) 
See Learning Appendix 4

1
Issues have been identified 
from upheld complaints and 
have been addressed; 
remedies have been provided 
to the customers by 
apologising and informing 
them of the improvements 
that have been made.

Complaints where the Council is 
partially at fault (Partially Upheld)

5
(50%)

Complaints where the Council 
is not at fault  (Not Upheld)

4
(40%)

Stage 1 Complaints 
Comparisons  

See Appendix 3 (1.2)
Via Email

10
10

10

2020/21

2021/22

This represents no 

increase

0

17
DAYS

Corporate 
complaints

Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 - 31 December 2021)

How complaints are received 
See Appendix 3 (1.2)

Statutory Customer Feedback

Children’s and Education Services Appendix 1

(10%)

(100%)

P
age 15



Stage 1 Complaints Received – Appendix 3 (1.2)
Breakdown by Service Area 

Strengthening Families

Compliments 
Appendix 3 (1.8)

Informal
Complaints 

Appendix 3 (1.1)

32

17

C&YPiC

2

5

Stage 1 Complaints Received
Breakdown by Category

Statutory Customer Feedback

Children’s and Education ServicesAppendix 1

Breakdown by Quarter

0

10

20

30

2020/21

Breakdown by Quarter

0

2

4

2020/21

Q
2

Q
3

2

Q
4

Breakdown by Quarter

0

1

2

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

0

8

3

10

0 0

7

0

2021/22

2021/22

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

1

Q
4

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

  

Q
4

0

13

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

Q
1 Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

6

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison – Appendix 3 (1.2)

Stage 2 Complaints Comparison – Appendix 3 (1.5)

Stage 3 Complaints Comparison – Appendix 3 (1.6)

2020/21 2021/22

Q
1

So
ci

al
 W

o
rk

 U
n

it
 8

1

8

Education

Commissioned Service 

5

0

11

SE
N

D

1
C

&
YP

iC

D
C

&
YP

 
2

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
  

O
cc

u
p

at
io

n
al

 T
h

er
ap

is
t 

1

Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 - 31 December 2021)

10

000

0

(1
 u

p
h

el
d

)

P
age 16



Stage 1 Complaints 
(Formal) Received  

See Appendix 3 
(2.1 and 3.2)

8

Average Complaint 
Response Time

See Appendix 3 (3.4)

Complaints where the 
Council is at fault 

(Upheld)  
See Learning Appendix 4

1
(12.5%)

Complaints Where The Council Is 
Partially At Fault (Partially Upheld)

0
O%)

Complaints Where The Council 
Is Not At Fault (Not Upheld) 

6
(75%)

Stage 1 Complaints 
Comparisons

See Appendix 3 (2.1 and 3.2)

How complaints are received 
See Appendix 3 (3.2) 

7

8

2020/21

2021/22

This represents an 

increase

Statutory Customer Feedback

Adult Services and Public HealthAppendix 1

1

Issues have been identified 
from these upheld 
complaints and have been 
addressed; remedies have 
been provided to the 
customers by apologising and 
informing them of the 
improvements that have 
been made.

Statutory 
complaints

DAYS

18

8
(100%)

Email

Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 - 31 December 2021)

7 cases finalised -one complaint 
is currently under investigation

P
age 17



Compliments -
Appendix 3 (3.5)

Informal Complaints  
Appendix 3 (3.1)

121

13

Stage 1 Complaints Received  - Breakdown by Category Stage 1 Complaints Comparison

Breakdown by Quarter -See Appendix 3 (3.2)

0

10

20

30

40

2020/21

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Social Care Public Health

12
6 7 7

Stage 1 Complaints Received 
Appendix 3 (3.2) - Breakdown by Service Area 

Contracted/Independent

Older People/Reablement

M
A

SH

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

6

2021/22

Statutory Customer Feedback

Adult Services and Public HealthAppendix 1

A
sh

le
y 

C
o

u
rt

  
(S

ti
ll 

u
n

d
er

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n

)
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

1

C
ar

lt
o

n
 G

ar
d

en
s 

-
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

11

11

Ea
st

 L
o

ca
lit

y 
Te

am

11

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
Li

vi
n

g 
Se

rv
ic

es

1

8

Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 - 31 December 2021)

Su
n

b
ea

m
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
ed

 L
iv

in
g 

-
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

C
o

to
n

 C
ar

e 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
 H

o
m

e 
 -

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

ed
 S

er
vi

ce

N
ew

b
ri

d
ge

 C
ar

e 
H

o
m

e 
-

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

ed
 S

er
vi

ce

1 1 1

(1
 u

p
h

el
d

)

P
age 18



27
Stage 1 Response Timescales 

See Appendix 3 (4.4) Stage 1 Average Complaint 
Response Time 

See Appendix 3 (4.4)

Stage 1 Complaints where the Council is at fault 
(upheld) See Learning Appendix 4

Stage 1 Complaints where the Council 
is not at fault 

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison for Q3 
See Appendix 3 (4.2) 

Stage 1 Complaints 
decreased by

8
(30%)

25 cases
(93% )

Responded to 
within timescales 

(Target: 95%)
15
DAYS

Issues have been identified from upheld 
complaints and have been addressed; remedies 
have been provided to the customers by 
apologising and informing them of the 
improvements that have been made.

16
Complaints

Decrease of 16
complaints compared 

to Q3 2020/21

2020/21

2021/22

43

27

Stage 1 Complaints Received 
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

19
(70%)

Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 – 31 December 2021)

Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints Appendix 2

P
age 19



Compliments Received  
See Appendix 3 (4.6)2

0
2

1
/2

2

Stage 1 Complaints Received
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

Stage 1 Complaints 
Breakdown by Service

City Housing and 
Environment 

Finance

Governance

3

2
0

2
1

/2
2

74

Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints Appendix 2

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison 
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

Breakdown by Quarter
(Complaints were not upheld unless otherwise indicated)

Breakdown by Service Area

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
0

/2
1

29

73

43

66

Service Requests
See Appendix 3 (4.1)

32

334
23

2
0

2
0

/2
1

(4
 u

p
h

el
d

)

2
0

2
0

/2
1

How complaints 
are received 

See Appendix 3 
(4.2) 

2
0

2
1

/2
2

32

(2
 u

p
h

el
d

)

2
0

2
1

/2
2

27

2 1 2
1 1

4

1 2

13

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 – 31 December 2021)

(1
 u

p
h

el
d

)

(1
 u

p
h

el
d

)

(2) 7%

(21) 78%

(3) 11%

(1) 4%

Letter Email Telephone Webform

1

P
age 20



Stage 2 Corporate Complaints Comparison for Quarter 3
See Appendix 3 (4.5)

LGSCO enquiries for Quarter 3
See Appendix 3 (5.1 and 5.3)

2020/21

2021/22 7

2020/21

2021/22

3

3

1 3 3

Upheld Part 
Upheld

Not 
Upheld

(Council 
at fault) (Council 

partly at 
fault)

(Council 
not at 
fault)

Figures consistent for 2021/22 
Q3 compared to 2020/21 Q3. 
Customer Feedback team has 
also received 8 initial LGSCO 
assessment enquiry for Q3 
2021/22.

Appendix 2

HO enquiries for Quarter 3 
See Appendix 3 (5.2 and 5.4)

Figures increased for 2021/22 Q3 
compared to 2020/21 Q3. 
Customer Feedback team has 
also received 4 initial HO 
assessment enquiry for Q3 
2021/22.

2020/21

2021/22

1

4

5

Customer Feedback

Stage 2 Corporate Complaints, Local Government 

and Social Care (LGSCO) and Housing 

Ombudsman (HO) Enquiries

Appendix 2
Quarter 3 (1 October 2021 – 31 December 2021)

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

SECTION 1:   
Children’s Services, Education Services, Adult Services and Public Health 
Complaints Activity  
1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 

1.0     Children’s and Education Services – Complaint Activity 

 1.1 Informal Complaints 

   The complaint regulations provide an opportunity for young people/children, parents, 
advocates and carers to raise issues of concern without those matters being treated as 
formal complaints, as long as they are effectively addressed and resolved in a timely 
manner.  These are referred to as informal complaints; 17 informal complaints were 
received during 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 compared to 11 informal 
complaints received during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020; an increase of six 
cases. Out of the 17 informal complaints, one enquiry was received via an advocacy 
service.  

 1.2 Stage One Complaints  

  During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received ten stage one 
Children’s and Education Services complaints compared to ten during 1 October 2020 to 
31 December 2020, a consistent number of cases received. The ten complaints received 
during this period refer to five separate service areas.   The highest figure of five cases 
referred to the SEND Team.  In some cases, this has followed extensive but 
unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those complaints informally.  The following 
customer groups submitted complaints to the council; nine parents and one relative.  All 
ten complaints logged and investigated were submitted via email.  No stage one 
complaints were received via an advocacy service.  Out of the ten complaints logged and 
investigated during this period, one case was upheld (at fault), five cases were partially 
upheld (partially at fault) and four cases not upheld (not at fault). 

1.3 Timescales    

   Out of the ten complaints logged and investigated during this period, no complaints were 
dealt with in accordance with the Children’s Act.  Ten complaints were dealt with in 
accordance with the corporate complaints policy and procedure (Non-Children’s Act) with 
a response timescale of 21 calendar days; the average timescale for complaint 
responses was 17 days.  The customer feedback team regularly reviews response times 
with Children’s Services to improve timescales and complainants are regularly updated on 
the progress of their complaint, whilst providing realistic timescales. 

 1.4 Stage Two Complaints    

During this period 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021, the council received no 
statutory stage two complaints; this is in comparison to no complaint cases received 
during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.  

The council received no children’s and education stage two complaints in accordance 
with our corporate complaints policy and procedure.  This is in comparison to three cases 
received during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.  

Page 23



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

1.5    Stage Three Complaints 

Where a statutory children’s stage two complaint investigation has been carried out and 
the complainant remains dissatisfied, they have the right to request matters proceed to the 
final stage of the statutory complaints procedure; a stage three Independent Complaint 
Review Panel.  During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 no complaints escalated to 
a stage three panel during this period; this is in comparison to no stage three cases during 
1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.  

 

1.6 Complaint Category 
 
 These are the headings under which we register the complaint against, based on the 

complaint details received – see attached Dashboard. 

1.7 Compliments 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 
the team’s monitoring process.  During this period 32 compliments were received for 
Children’s Services, compared to four during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.  
Safeguarding and Exploitation team received eight compliments followed by Court Team 
receiving six compliments and Adoption@Heart and Child Assessment Team both 
received 3 compliments. See Appendix 4 for compliments. 

2.0 Public Health – Complaint Activity 
 
2.1 Regionally and nationally councils receive very few complaints in relation to Public Health 

Services. A typical complaint would be where a council has commissioned a service for 
local people through a Clinic or GP practice. Complaints in relation to GP’s and Hospitals 
are dealt with through a separate complaint process managed by Health Services.  In 
relation to Public Health complaints, there has been no complaints received during 1 
October to 31 December 2021; this is in comparison to no complaints received during 1 
October 2020 to 31 December 2020. 

 
3.0 Adult Services – Complaint Activity  

3.1 Informal Complaints 

   The complaint regulations provide an opportunity for adult complaints to be resolved 
informally utilising a number of resolution methods as long as they are effectively 
addressed and resolved in a timely manner.  During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 
2021 the council received 13 informal complaints which were resolved at service level 
without going through the formal route. This was compared to six informal complaints 
received during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020, an increase of seven cases. 

3.2 Stage One Complaints 

   During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received eight formal 
complaints compared to seven during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020, 
representing an increase of one case during this period.  The eight complaints received 
covered eight separate service areas, each consistently receiving one complaint.  All 
eight complaints were received via email.  In some cases, this has followed extensive but 
unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those complaints informally. During this period, 

Page 24



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

five complaints received were in relation to commissioned services – see Appendix 1.  
Out of the eight cases logged and investigated during this period, one case was upheld, 
no cases partially upheld and six cases not upheld.  One case has not been finalised and 
is currently under investigation.  

   Out of the eight complaint cases received, no cases escalated to stage two under the 
corporate complaints policy and procedure. 

3.3 Complaint Category 
 
 These are the headings under which we register the complaint against, based on the 

complaint details received – see attached Dashboard. 
 

3.4 Timescales 

All eight complaints logged and investigated during this period were dealt with in 
accordance with the Statutory Adults procedure with a response timescale of 18 working 
days. Cases responded to outside of the ten working day organisational timescale are 
due to various reasons for example, complex cases, availability of resources.  In these 
circumstances, complainants are regularly updated on the progress of their complaint. 

3.5 Compliments 

 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 

the team’s monitoring process. 121 compliments were received during 1 October 2021 to 

31 December 2021 relating to Adult Services compared to 19 during 1 October 2020 to 

31 December 2020.  109 compliments were received for Welfare Rights, followed by five 

compliments received for Community OT Team.  See Appendix 4 for compliments. 

3.6 Areas of Learning from Complaints 

   See Appendix 4 for stage 1 learning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

SECTION 2:  Corporate Complaints Activity, Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman and Housing Ombudsman Complaints Activity 1 October 
2021 to 31 December 2021  
 
4.0 Corporate Complaints Activity, Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

and Housing Ombudsman 

 

4.1 Informal complaint enquiries/service requests 

 

  The customer feedback team works alongside the service involved and the customer 
complaining to resolve the complaint informally, preventing it becoming a formal 
complaint. It should be noted that 334 informal complaints and service request enquiries 
were logged with the customer feedback team in line with our complaints policy and 
procedure during 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021, compared to 214 received 
during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.  These types of enquiries are varied, for 
example, missed bin collection, contaminated bins, appeals, parking enquiries, litter or 
enquiries that fall outside of the complaints policy and procedure jurisdiction.  All 
enquiries were logged and resolved informally or sign posted to the correct process 
without going through the corporate complaints procedure; this provides a swift outcome 
and resolution for the customer by resolving concerns at service level.  

4.2  Corporate stage 1 complaints  

   During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received 27 stage one 
corporate complaints compared to 43 received during 1 October 2020 to 31 December 
2020; a decrease of 16 cases.  Out of the 27 cases logged and investigated, eight cases 
were upheld (at fault) and 19 not upheld (not at fault). The 27 complaints cover nine 
separate service areas, the highest figure of 13 complaints refer to Waste Management, 
followed by Licensing received four cases.  The 13 complaints for Waste Management 
refer to general waste as follows, seven bin collections, two officer conduct, one assisted 
waste collection, one alleged damage to property, one lack of service/delays in 
responding and one bulky waste collection. In some cases, this has followed extensive 
but unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those matters at service level. Out of the 
27 stage one complaints received, 21 cases were submitted via email, three cases via 
telephone, two cases via written correspondence and one case via webform.  

4.3 Corporate Complaint Category 

   During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the main issue of complaint involved failure 
to provide a service (10), conduct of employees (8); dissatisfaction of council policies (3), 
failure to achieve standards/quality (3), delays with responding or administration (3). 

4.4  Corporate Timescales 

   The average response time for responding to each complaint is 15 days for this period; 
this is in comparison to 13 days for 1 October 2020 to 30 December 2020.  The response 
timescale for stage 1 complaints responding within 21 calendar days (corporate complaints 
policy and procedure) is 93%.  Out of the 27 cases logged and investigated during this 
period, 25 cases were responded to within 21 calendar days and 2 cases responded to 
outside of this timescale.  The target of 95% response time has therefore not been 
achieved; the Customer Feedback Team will continue to monitor this response time and 

Page 26



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

work with service groups to improve this timescale.  Cases responded to outside of the 
timescale are due to various reasons for example, complex cases, availability of 
resources.  In these circumstances, complainants are regularly updated on the progress 
of their complaint. 

 
4.5 Stage 2 corporate complaints   
 
  During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received seven stage two 

corporate complaints compared to five cases for 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020, 
an increase of two cases.  Out of the seven cases received, one case was upheld (at 
fault) and three cases partially upheld (partially at fault) and three cases not upheld (not 
at fault).  

 
  Stage two complaints received are as follows: 

 
City Housing and Environment received five cases as follows: 
 

 Waste Management received one case in relation to assisted waste collection;       
outcome not upheld 

 Waste Management received one case in relation to location of a bin; outcome 
partially upheld; appropriate learning and remedy has been put in place 

 Private Sector Housing received one case in relation to gaining entry into a 
property without consent; outcome partially upheld; appropriate, learning and 
remedy has been put in place 

 Private Sector Housing received one case in relation to handling of personal data 
and breach of data on register; outcome upheld; appropriate learning and remedy 
has been put in place 

 Arborcultural Team received one case in relation to maintenance of tree near 
property; outcome partially upheld; appropriate learning and remedy has been put 
in place 

 
Regeneration received one case as follows: 

 

 Planning received one case in relation to a planning application process and 
impact of direct daylight; outcome not upheld 

 
Governance received one case as follows: 

 

 Equality and Diversity Team received one case in relation to equality identification 
information on the council’s online form; outcome not upheld 

 
4.6     Corporate Compliments 

 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 

the team’s monitoring process.  During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council 

received 32 compliments; this is in comparison to 71 received during 1 October 2020 to 

31 December 2020.  Planning Department received 17, Waste Management received 

four followed by Highways receiving two. See Appendix 4 for compliments. 

 

 
 

Page 27



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

4.7 Area of Learning for Corporate Complaints 
 

See Appendix 4 for stage one learning. 
 

5.0 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman/Housing Ombudsman  
 
5.1 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Enquiries (LGSCO)  
 

During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received three Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) enquiries as follows: 

 
 Adult Services received one complaint as follows: 
 

 Adult Services and Health Partnership received one complaint in relation to 
professionals involved in care, failure to provide intensive care support and failure 
of nursing home/trust adequately addressing complaints and failure to supply 
health records; outcome not upheld, no maladministration 

  
Children’s Services received one complaint as follows; 
 

 Children and Young People in Care received one complaint in relation to no offers 
of suitable fostering placements and failure to communicate in relation to 
whereabouts of a young person; outcome upheld, no further action. The LGSCO 
confirmed this case will be recorded as a satisfactory remedy carried out by the 
council 

 
Wolverhampton Homes received one complaint as follows; 
 

 Wolverhampton Homes received one complaint in relation to the standard of work 
carried out by tradesman when completing adaptions to a property under a grant 
from the council; the council failed to carry out a follow up inspection in relation to 
the quality of work; outcome not upheld, no maladministration 
 

5.2      Housing Ombudsman (HO) Enquiries  
 
 During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received four enquiries from the 

Housing Ombudsman for Wolverhampton Homes as follows: 
 

 One enquiry received in relation to the treatment the resident received while in 
temporary accommodation, conduct of tenancy officers when securing a new 
tenancy, the response to their reports that their personal property was returned 
from storage damaged and the duplication of council tax charges; outcome falls 
outside of the HO’s jurisdiction; complainant sign posted accordingly 

 One enquiry received in relation to the response to the resident’s damp and mould 
reports; outcome awaiting HO’s decision  

 One enquiry received in relation to the handling of repairs to the paving and shed; 
outcome no maladministration 

 One enquiry received in relation to the landlord’s handling of the resident’s reports 
concerning the condition of the front garden, security and key access; outcome 
awaiting HO’s decision 

 
 

Page 28



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

5.3 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) assessment enquiries  
 

During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received eight Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman assessment enquiries as follows: 

 
 Children’s Services received three enquiries as follows; 
 

 Children and Young People in Care received one enquiry in relation to actions of 
the fostering service; outcome case progressed to further consideration by the 
LGSCO 

 Education SEND Team received one enquiry in relation to failure to produce draft 
EHCP within legal timescales, data breach and officer conduct; outcome 
progressed to a full investigation 

 Strengthening Families Team received one enquiry in relation to section 7 report 
content and recommendations; outcome closed after initial enquiries, out of 
jurisdiction 

 
Regeneration received two enquiries as follows: 
 

 Planning received one enquiry in relation to how a planning application was dealt 
with close to the complainant's home; outcome closed after initial enquiries, no 
further action 

 Planning received one enquiry in relation to officer conduct; outcome closed after 
initial enquiries, no further action 

 
Finance received one enquiry as follows: 
 

 Risk and Insurance Team received one enquiry in relation to allegations of refuse 
officers damaging a front wall and insurance response; outcome closed after 
initial enquiries, out of jurisdiction 

 
Governance received one enquiry as follows: 
 

 Electoral Services/Legal Services received one enquiry in relation to electoral 
fraud; outcome closed after initial enquiries, out of jurisdiction 

 
Wolverhampton Homes received one enquiry as follows: 
 

 Wolverhampton Homes received one enquiry in relation to eviction from a 
tenanted property; outcome closed after initial enquiries, out of jurisdiction 

 
5.4 Housing Ombudsman assessment enquiries  
 
 During 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021 the council received four Housing 

Ombudsman assessment enquiries as follows: 
 

Wolverhampton Homes received four enquiries as follows: 
 

 One enquiry in relation to the landlord’s handling of plastering carried out in a 
property and the time the landlord is taking to respond to their formal complaint; 
outcome premature complaint 

Page 29



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 One enquiry in relation to reports of rubble left in the garden, issues with the 
drainage system and reports of disrepair to the kitchen flooring; outcome 
premature complaint  

 One enquiry in relation to HO requesting a copy of the final decision statement 
referenced in Wolverhampton Homes complaint letter; outcome premature 
complaint  

 One enquiry in relation to the lack of a response and action to access to heating 
or hot water; outcome premature complaint 

 
6.0 Learning/Action Plans  

 

Where complaints highlight that things have gone wrong, heads of service, managers 

and the customer feedback team are required to identify these areas, implement 

remedies and review processes/procedures where necessary.  Customer Feedback 

Team and Directorates are committed to learning and require the completion of a 

tracking form/learning log from each complaint investigated at all stages.  When a 

complaint is upheld/partially upheld (council at fault) and the findings of a subsequent 

investigation is for a financial remedy, change to policy or service delivery, the Customer 

Feedback Team produce an action plan report. Recommendations within these reports 

are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Service 

Manager/Director to ensure appropriate remedies and changes to policy/service delivery 

are implemented.  The Customer Feedback Team also attend regular quality assurance 

meetings for Adults and Children’s Services and Waste Liaison Meetings to ensure they 

use the learning from complaints to drive service improvements and implement learning 

into their practice improvement plans. 

  See attached Appendix 4, Learning dashboard  

 

 

Page 30



Quarter 3 – 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021

Action Plans/Learning from complaints - When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a subsequent 

investigation is for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produce an action plan report and follow up with 
the service any learning/action that needs to be carried out. Recommendations within these reports are agreed with appropriate Heads 
of Service and shared with the relevant Director.   Please see below a few examples of stage 1 complaint learning 

Learning from Complaints
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Children’s and Education Services – Stage one complaint learning
• Complaint in relation to frequent change in child's Social Worker causing delays in progress. Learning –

Apologised for changes in Social Worker and confirmed new Social Worker will be permanent to 
minimise any further change for the Young Person

• Complaint in relation to lack of communication and poor service offered in relation to EHCP. Learning –
Apologised for service provided on this occasion; the service has been addressing issues around 
communication within the team and now have a clear 3-day reply policy for emails to ensure we are 
clearer about our customer service standards in response to wait times for email responses 

• Complaint in relation to delays with referral and reassessment. Learning – apologised for the delay of 
communication/introduction from the new team. However, this was resolved, and transfer was 
completed prior to responding to the complaint

Adult Services – Stage one complaint learning

• Complaint in relation to services provided by commissioned care service – Learning – the 
commissioned service has confirmed that they have taken the appropriate action with the members of 
staff in question

P
age 31



Quarter 1 (April – June 2019)

Action Plans/Learning from complaints - When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a 

subsequent investigation is for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produce an action plan 
report and follow up with the service any learning/action that needs to be carried out. Recommendations within these reports 
are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Director.   Please see below a few examples of 
stage 1 complaint learning 

Learning from Complaints
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints – Stage one complaint learning 
• Complaint in relation to Private Hire Driver licence application not issued. Learning – Refund for fast 

track given, apologised and issued licence for tomorrow. Training on cultural differences in family name 
order given to staff and processes updated 

• Complaint in relation to no response from Officers in Environmental Protection. Learning- Established 
that there was a lack of communication with the resident; apologised to resident and learning has 
been embedded within the service

• Complaint in relation to the procurement process and procedure. Learning- Reviewed supplier 
complaint and consulted with Procurement Systems Analyst.  Requested e-tendering system supplier to 
investigate if there was any technical issue; consulted with legal services and outcome provided to 
complainant

Quarter 3 – 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021

P
age 32



Quarter 3 – 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021

Compliments for Children’s, Adult’s, Public Health and Corporate – Customers pay us a compliment if they 

feel that the council has given the best service we can.  Compliments about a service a customer has received from a 
department or a person are always welcome. We ensure that the people, or service, customers are complimenting are 
informed and congratulated. Please see below a few examples of compliments received.

Compliments 
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Children’s and Education Services – Compliments. 
•I just wanted to say, thank you so much for the help and support you've given the vulnerable students in our school. You 
are, by far, one of the best Social Workers I've encountered in my 15 years at our school. Your profession takes a lot of 
criticism from the public, but I think if they realised what a difficult, demanding job you do, they would be more 
appreciative. Thank you for being there for the students and our school.
•Education Support Officer within the Virtual Schools team received a compliment from a member of staff from the 
school. She stated '[your support] was really helpful...Your knowledge and enthusiasm was really reassuring'.

Adult Services – Compliments
•Very, very impressed with the support given by the social worker! Very patient, supportive and went above and beyond to 
ensure that I understood all and was receiving all possible support - to consider due diligence she went beyond that! In 
addition, she communicated incredibly politely and mannerly and always sought to find a solution to any issues that 
arose! Cannot fault her! Exceptional service.

Corporate – Compliments 
•A compliment for Planning- Many thanks for forwarding the decision notice, this is much appreciated.  Thank you also for 
maintaining communication and support during the consultation process

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Board 
14 June 2022 

 

Report title City of Wolverhampton Select Committee 2022 - The 
Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management 
and Commissioning 

 Decision designation AMBER 

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Paula Brookfield 
Governance and Equalities 

Key decision Yes 

In forward plan Yes 

Wards affected All  

Accountable Director David Pattison 

Originating service Governance 

Accountable employee Julia Cleary 
 
Kim Reynolds 

Scrutiny and Systems 
Manager 
Improvement Manager 

Tel 01902 555046 
01902 554876 

Email Julia.Cleary@wolverhampton
.gov.uk 
Kim.Box@wolverhampton.go
v.uk  

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 

Core Services 
Public Health Leadership 
Team 
Joint Adults, Children’s 
Leadership Team 
Regeneration Leadership 
Team 
Strategic Executive Board 
Cabinet Member for 
Governance and Equalities 
Cabinet Member for City 
Economy 
Leader 
Scrutiny Board 
Cabinet 
Council 

9 March 2022 
 
16 March 2022 
17 March 2022 
 
22 March 2022 
 
17 May 2022 
18 May 2022 
31 May 2022 
 
 
30 May 2022 
14 June 2022 
6 July 2022 
20 July 2022 
 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item No: 5

mailto:Julia.Cleary@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Julia.Cleary@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Kim.Box@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Kim.Box@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

Recommendation for decision: 

Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

1. Endorse the recommendations in the action plan attached at Appendix 2 prior to 

consideration by Cabinet on 6 July 2022. 

  

Page 36



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 Council is asked to endorse the recommendations contained in Appendix 2. 

1.2 Timescales for implementation of the recommendations will be agreed with the action 

owners following endorsement of the recommendations by Council. 

2.0 Background 

2.1 To re-energise political structures and increase Councillor involvement and influence in 

decision making processes, a trial Select Committee in relation to The Wolverhampton 

Pound, was commenced in October 2021.  

2.2 To support this trial the Council sought input from expert witnesses both internal and 

external to gather feedback and help shape the recommendations. 

2.3 The Select Committee comprised a cross-party group of councillors working together to 

gather information and evidence in relation to an agreed line of inquiry. 

2.4 The Select Committee was non-political in its approach and met in public to hear 

evidence from officers, partner organisations, community groups and individuals.  

2.5 The Select Committee pursued the goals of equality, diversity, and inclusion in relation to 

witnesses, membership and the work undertaken. 

2.6 The Terms of Reference were as follows: 

To consider the following lines of inquiry: 

 ‘How do we engage with local businesses and the community and voluntary sector in 

relation to procurement, contract management and commissioning and how do we 

ensure inclusivity, equality and value for money in these approaches?’ 

 How do we engage with partners, local businesses and the community and voluntary 

sector to make the City a catalyst for change by ensuring that all contracts reflect our 

values in areas such as climate change, equality, diversity and inclusion, retaining and 

growing local wealth and having a real presence in the City?’ 

2.7 The following meetings were held as part of the Select Committee process: 

Meeting Topic Date of Meeting 

Community Wealth Building 24 November 2021 

Procurement Finance and Commercial  

 

8 December 2021 

Commissioning 

 

15 December 2021 

Business Support 

 

12 January 2022 

Review outputs to date and focus areas for 1 February 2022 

Page 37



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

recommendations in draft report.  

 

Engagement Events – Local Businesses 

 

3 February 2022 

Community and Voluntary Sector 

 

16 February 2022 

Final Select Committee – Procurement 

And Contract Management 

23 February 2022 

Care/ Commissioning Provider 

Engagement 

Feedback sought via survey 

 

3.0 Progress, options, discussion, etc. 

3.1 The Select Committee agreed the final draft of the report at the meeting on 23 February 

2022 which is now presented to Council for endorsement. 

4.0 Evaluation of alternative options 

4.1 The Select Committee considered a range of evidence and information when considering 

and agreeing it’s findings and recommendations from a diverse range of stakeholders, 

partners and providers. 

4.2 The draft report has been shared and discussed with stakeholders for comment and 

amendments made where appropriate to ensure that the recommendations are realistic 

and achievable.  

5.0 Reasons for decision 

5.1 The recommendations and findings contained in the report show that with a progressive 

approach to procurement and contract management, comes innovation, creativity and the 

commissioning of services and products that are right for our City and our citizens. One 

size does not fit all and good communication and engagement with our partners, the 

Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS), existing suppliers, and potential suppliers will 

allow us to ensure that we are procuring the right goods and the rights services in the 

right way for us. 

6.0 Financial implications 

6.1 Councillors are simply requested to endorse the action plan, approving the 

recommendations contained within in principle.  At this stage it is anticipated that no 

additional costs will be incurred in pursuit of many of the recommendations.  There are 

some, however, where associated financial implications may emerge.  One such 

recommendation is that resources for the Wolverhampton Pound initiative are reviewed 

by officers and that additional capacity is identified to ensure delivery against this key 

priority.  In these cases the assessment of financial implications and identification of any 

Page 38



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

required funding will follow normal process and details will be incorporated in future 

updates to Councillors. [GE/31052022/B]   

7.0 Legal implications 

7.1 The Council must ensure that it complies with Local Government Law and Procurement 

Regulations when implementing the action plan.  

SZ/06062022/P 

8.0 Equalities implications 

8.1 There are no direct Equalities implications arising from the report. Any equality, diversity 

and inclusion implications in pursuit of these recommendations will be identified in future 

reports to Councillors. 

 
9.0 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix 1: The Wolverhampton Pound Select Committee Report 

9.2 Appendix 2: The Wolverhampton Pound Select Committee Action Plan 

  

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Title

wolverhampton.gov.uk

The Wolverhampton Pound
Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning

City of Wolverhampton 
Select Committee 2022

P
age 41



2 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Title

Contents

03 Select Committee Terms of Reference

04 Membership of Select Committee

06 Introduction from the Chair

07 Background: What is Community Wealth Building 
 and the Wolverhampton Pound?

08 The Anchor Network

11 Anchor Network Spend Analysis

12 New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

18 Resources

19 Cross Departmental Reading

20 The Procurement Pipeline

21 Social Value and Ethical Considerations

23 Contract Management

26 Barriers to Procurement

29 Risks and Mitigation

29 Voluntary and Community Sector Engagement

32 Conclusion

32 Next Steps

33 Recommendations

35 Select Committee - Recommended Process Detail

P
age 42



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 3

TitleSelect Committee Terms of Reference

1. Remit, Scope and Terms of Reference

 To consider the following lines of inquiry:

 ‘How do we engage with local businesses and the 
 Voluntary and Community sector in relation to procurement,  
 contract management and commissioning and how do we  
 ensure inclusivity, equality and value for money in these  
 approaches?’

 How do we engage with partners, local businesses and the 
 Voluntary and Community sector to make the City a catalyst 
 for change by ensuring that all contracts reflect our values 
 in areas such as climate change, equality, diversity and 
 inclusion, retaining and growing local wealth and having 
 a real presence in the City?’

Select Committee Terms of Reference

• The Select Committee is a cross-party group of non-executive 
councillors who will work as a team to produce a report and 
draft recommendations in relation to an agreed matter. 

• The Select Committee will be non-political in its approach.

• The Select Committee will agree the terms of reference as 
set out. At this stage some potential witnesses from whom 
the committee particularly wants to hear for example senior 
officers and partner organisations may be sent a list of more 
specific questions and requests for information.

• The Select Committee will meet in public to hear evidence 
from officers, partner organisations and individuals. The select 
committee will meet in private to consider the evidence they 
receive and agree the draft report and recommendations. 

• The Select Committee will pursue the goals of equality, diversity, 
and inclusion in relation to witnesses, membership and work 
undertaken.

P
age 43



4 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

TitleMembership of Select Committee

Membership of Select Committee

Cllr Susan Roberts (MBE)
(Chair)

Cllr Paul Appleby 
(Vice Chair)    

Cllr Jonathan Crofts Cllr Valerie Evans    Cllr Barbara McGarrity 
QN

Cllr Rita Potter Cllr Zee Russell Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman    Cllr Ellis Turrell

P
age 44



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 5

TitleMembership of Select Committee

Stuart Macdonald 
Centre for Local Economic 
Strategies (CLES)

Conrad Parke 
Centre for Local Economic 
Strategies (CLES)

Ray Flynn 
Anchor Network, 
University of Wolverhampton

Mal Cowgill 
Anchor Network, 
City of Wolverhampton College

Shaun Aldis 
Anchor Network, 
Wolverhampton Homes

Corin Crane 
Black Country Chamber 
of Commerce

Sam Duru 
Black Business Network

Karen Woolley 
Federation of Small Businesses

Laura Thomas 
Chief Executive Citizens Advice, 
Wolverhampton and Dudley

The Committee would like to thank the following witnesses for their time, expertise, and support throughout the enquiry:

Clare Roberts Malloy 
Lead Bid and Tender Writer, 
YMCA Country Group

David Pattison 
Chief Operating Officer, 
City of Wolverhampton Council

Mark Taylor 
Deputy Chief Executive, 
City of Wolverhampton Council

Claire Nye 
Director of Finance, 
City of Wolverhampton Council

Charlotte Johns 
Director of Strategy, 
City of Wolverhampton Council 

Richard Lawrence 
Director of Regeneration, 
City of Wolverhampton Council

Becky Wilkinson 
Director of Adult Services, 
City of Wolverhampton Council

John Thompson 
Head of Procurement, 
City of Wolverhampton Council

Parvinder Uppal 
Head of Commercial, City 
of Wolverhampton Council

Isobel Woods 
Head of Enterprise, City 
of Wolverhampton Council

Joanna Grocott 
Place Based Innovation Lead, 
City of Wolverhampton 
Council 

Laura Collings 
Head of Policy and Strategy, 
City of Wolverhampton 
Council

Andrew Wolverson 
Head of Service, Children’s 
Strategy and Partnerships, 
City of Wolverhampton 
Council

Alicia Wood 
Head of Adult Commissioning, 
City of Wolverhampton 
Council

Steven Larking 
Commissioning Manager, City 
of Wolverhampton Council 

Scott Thompson 
Thompson AVC

Michael Hallows 
Commercial Business Partner, 
City of Wolverhampton 
Council

Jack Quinton 
JRQ Media

Harbans 
MasalaMontana

Neal Quinton 
Magair Wolverhampton Ltd

Rachel Bruerton 
Clares of Compton

Ruth Evans  
Brewing Food and Beverage 
Industry Suppliers Association

Jugan Paul 
Visual Arts

P
age 45



6 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

TitleIntroduction

Times have changed for us in Local Government 
with decreasing budgets, increasing demand, 
changing and more complex public needs, 
demographic challenges, technological 
advancements, and a need for greater community 
collaboration; all in the wake of an unprecedented 
global pandemic. 

New approaches are now needed more 
than ever to help level up our most deprived 
communities and support our vulnerable citizens. 
At the same time we must seek to rejuvenate our 
local economies, support our business and ensure 
that we have a thriving voluntary and community 
sector (VCS). The Wolverhampton Pound is the 
new approach that will help us to achieve these 
feats, working together with our larger partner 
institutions to share resources and knowledge to 
deliver an additional £21.8 million per year and 
create an additional 430 jobs per year.

Working with the Centre for Local Economic 
Strategies (CLES) and other major stakeholders 
in the City, the City of Wolverhampton Council 
have developed an approach which will reorganise 
and control the local economy. The ambition is to 
ensure wealth is not extracted but broadly held 

Introduction from the Chair

and generative, with local roots, where income is recirculated, 
communities are put first, and people are provided with 
opportunities, dignity and well-being.

The Wolverhampton Pound provides us with an opportunity to 
meet some of the challenges of levelling up. The Wolverhampton 
Pound and in particular the move of the procurement function 
to be a strategic change maker with a renewed focus on social 
value, will enable better identification of priority areas in our 
communities.   

By embracing the fundamentals of the Wolverhampton Pound, 
we can enable not only economic recovery but also support 
the health and wellbeing of our most in need communities 
and sectors. 

I was honoured to be asked to chair this Select Committee 
and would like to thank all of the organisations and groups 
who gave up their time to provide us with the information 
contained within this report. We heard evidence form CLES, 
partner organisations, Voluntary and Community sector 
representatives, local businesses, service providers and internal 
Council departments. This report provides a summary of our 
evidence sessions and a set of recommendations which the 
Committee consider important for the implementation and 
success of the Wolverhampton Pound. 

Cllr Susan Roberts (MBE) 
 

Chair of the 
Wolverhampton Pound 

Select Committee

P
age 46



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 7

TitleBackground

Community Wealth Building seeks to engage with the local economy 
so that wealth; both economic and social, can be kept and recirculated 
within our City and our communities. The Wolverhampton Pound 
will put our citizens and communities at the heart of all that we do, 
to ensure that local businesses, service providers and individuals 
are provided with the opportunities they have a right to expect; 
opportunities that will help to improve not just the local economy but 
the health, wellbeing and quality of life that all of our citizens deserve.

Background: What is Community Wealth Building 
and the Wolverhampton Pound?

A Community Wealth Building approach in relation to procurement 
and contract management will affect how we all carry out our day-
to-day business. A cultural change will be required to enable us to 
approach contract management and procurement in more creative 
and innovative ways and to open the door to businesses and providers 
who have not previously engaged with public sector procurement. 

Community Wealth Building uses the combined power 
of institutions, businesses and communities and aims 
to retain as much wealth as possible in the local 
economy by: 

• Creating opportunity locally

• Creating new local jobs and

• Creating new locally owned enterprises

The Wolverhampton Pound has five key objectives: 

• Retaining and growing local wealth and prioritising 
local spend 

• Embedding social value in the city and leveraging 
local spend and employment 

• Leading the green transition 

• Supporting growth in the health and wellbeing 
economy

• Growing and promoting a cultural and creative city

P
age 47



8 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

The Anchor Network

Community Wealth Building engages with and focuses on the activities of Anchor institutions, 
which are defined as large established organisations, rooted in local communities. In Wolverhampton, 
the Anchor Institutions are The City of Wolverhampton Council, The University of Wolverhampton, 
Wolverhampton Homes, The City of Wolverhampton College and the Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust.

The Anchor Network

Anchor
Network

Internal
Services

Wolverhampton
Pound

City of Wolverhampton
Council
University of Wolverhampton
Wolverhampton Homes
City of Wolverhampton College
Royal Wolverhampton
NHS Trust

Policy and Strategy
Procurement
Commercial
Commissioning
(Adults and Children)
Regeneration
Community and 
Voluntary Sector

Service Areas and
External Partners

Service Areas and External Partners

P
age 48



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 9

The Anchor Network

By using, and combining the Anchor Network procurement 
processes, pipelines, spending power, assets and workforce 
capabilities, a real and positive change can be made for the city 
and our citizens. By adopting a shared vision and narrative we will 
be able to embed coordinated place-based action across the city 
and identify and unite any disjointed work across the anchors and 
our partners. Identifying and developing this shared vision is and 
will continue to be a collaborative process with ongoing involvement 
and consultation with communities and other relevant stakeholders.

The Committee understands that the Anchor Network governing body 
meets on a quarterly basis, with a rotating chair from within the group. 
The Committee understand that the use of a rotating chair is to ensure 
that the network is collaboratively owned but suggest that this be kept 
under review to ensure that a consistent approach is being achieved. 
The Committee notes that the chairs also rotate for the working 
groups but that this rotation in on an annual basis to allow progress 
to be made on the implementation of work plans.  

The Committee is keen to ensure that resources will be in place 
to continue the work of CLES once its work with the Anchor Network 
comes to an end.  The Committee welcome the suggested creation 
of a Community Wealth Builder in Residence resource to lead, manage 
and develop the network. The Committee are pleased to note that 
funding has been agreed for an initial 12-month term for a Co-ordinator 
position and that recruitment is already underway. The Co-ordinator 
position will provide essential project management support for the 
network and focus on skills and workforce. 

Statement of Intent: 
 
We, the major institutions of Wolverhampton intend to:

• Make a long-term commitment to building community 
wealth in Wolverhampton.

• To work collaboratively to develop behaviours and 
practices that support local people and the local 
economy wherever possible. 

• To leverage our institutional power to support a 
fair and just transition to a low carbon economy.

• To work in partnership with the voluntary, community 
and social enterprise sector (VCSE) and the private 
sector to build a more resilient local economy.

These institutions will use their assets and influence to create 
economic and social value in the city and in our communities, 
whist ensuring that value for money is maintained throughout all 
process. The Wolverhampton Pound Anchor Institutions signed 
a statement of intent in March 2021 and a video introducing the 
Anchor Networks and their statement of intent can be found 
here Statement of Intent Signing.

P
age 49



10 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

The Anchor Network

The Committee recommend that 
an update on the action plan for 
the procurement working group be 
brought to a relevant scrutiny panel 
for consideration when appropriate.

The Committee were pleased to see the 
suggestion from CLES that a Community 
Wealth Building Hub be developed. This 
hub would link directly to the Anchor 
Network and its working groups to bring 
together business support and voluntary 
and community sector support in the City. 
Armed with this wealth of knowledge and 
information, the hub will then be able to 
create real local economic opportunity 
and build community wealth in the 
areas where it is most needed. 

A Community Wealth Building Hub would 
be driven by the strategic priorities of the 
Wolves Anchor Network. This hub would 
work across thematic areas, connecting 
foundational, reform and growth sectors to 
skills support and training, e.g., supporting 
the creative sector with business skills or 
growth sectors with digital skills, or skills 
to support the transition to new business 
models in the green economy.

The Committee notes that there 
are three working groups sitting 
under the Anchor Network: 

• Procurement and 
Commissioning

• Land and Property

• Workforce 

 
The Committee notes the action 
plan for the procurement 
working group which includes:

• Get Ready to Bid seminar  
series

• Interrogation of the spend  
framework

• Low Carbon Procurement –  
Roadmap to 2028

• Social Value Framework

• Refresh of the Wolverhampton  
Business Charter

A ‘hub’ model can sit between the Wolves 
Anchor Network, the established business 
support landscape, the VCSE sector and 
place-based working. This model will develop 
an approach which grows local and community 
ownership of the economy, with an emphasis on 
delivering outcomes for those people and places 
that are excluded from opportunity. [Relighting 
our City ‘together’ action plan; CLES]

The Committee also welcome the suggestion 
of a Procurement Hub as a shared anchor 
resource linking in with the CWB Hub. The 
Procurement Hub would seek to understand 
the Anchor Network’s demands for goods and 
services and match this with intelligence about 
the local economy. 

A Procurement Hub Manager would join 
and sustain the Wolverhampton Pound 
Procurement working group, supporting the 
implementation of the collective workplan and 
identify viable opportunities for local market 
making. The Committee understand that a 
Procurement Hub manager will need a decent 
grounding in procurement and commissioning, 
an understanding of the sources of market 
intelligence and an ability to work across 
various sectors of the economy, from 
construction to health & social care. 

P
age 50



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 11

Anchor Network Spend Analysis

The City of Wolverhampton Council engaged with the 
Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES) to support 
the development of the Wolverhampton Pound. This work 
involved embedding the principles of community wealth 
building (CWB) across the Anchor Network, identifying 
opportunities to grow and retain wealth in the City and 
quantifying the benefit of continued investment. 

The Wolverhampton Anchor Network spent over £1billion 
through procurement, commissioning and the employment 
of staff in 2019/20. Analysis by CLES has however shown 
that ‘over half of all procurement spend flows outside 
of the West Midlands economy, and that over half of 
salary spend flows outside of Wolverhampton’1. This 
analysis by CLES has shown that over £600 million of spend 
requires further analysis. Whilst work has been carried out to 
show where this money is going, we still need to understand 
why opportunities are not being taken up by local suppliers. 
Strategies will then need to be developed to retain as much 
of this spend in the City for the benefit of our citizens and 
businesses. By doing this, a multiplier affect can be applied 
and CLES have concluded that an additional £21.8 million 
per year can be achieved for the Wolverhampton economy, 
which will in turn support a further 430 jobs each year.

Anchor Network Spend Analysis

The work that has been started by CLES and the Anchor Institutions is therefore 
vital for our City to grow and thrive and for our citizens to live the lives that they 
deserve.

Economic 
Output 
(/year)

Employment 
growth 
(/year)

Local Supplier 
Multiplier 

(/year)

Local Staff 
Multiplier 

(/year)

Value 
of Social 

Value 
(/year)

Increase in 
local spend

£8,252,531 300 £2,640,810 £4,126,265 £2,417,860

Increase 
in local 
employment

£2,921,904 135 n/a £1,460,952 n/a

Total
£11,174,435 436 £2,640,810 £5,587,217 £2,417,860

£21.8m

1 Wolverhampton Pound A Business Case to Level Up Wolverhampton (CLES)

Summary of yearly benefits (Wolverhampton Pound 
A Business Case to Level Up Wolverhampton (CLES))

P
age 51



Whilst not losing sight of the more 
essential requirements underpinning 
procurement and contract 
management, a more progressive 
approach will enable us to better 
address the issues facing 
our City, including:

• Environmental sustainability

• Engagement with the Voluntary 
 and Community Sector

• Job Creation and employment

• Skills Development – including 
 digital skills

• Embedding social value and ethical  
 consideration into our contracts

12 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

Procurement and contract management 
are emerging from the back office and 
must be embraced as change making 
strategic functions. Procurement and 
contract management have the power 
and leverage to lead the Council towards 
its long-term vision for 2030 and to 
ensure that the priorities set out in 
the Our City: Our Plan are achieved. 

A progressive approach to procurement 
and contract management is even more 
pressing in the wake of the coronavirus 
pandemic. CLES recognise that 
Wolverhampton is well-placed to undertake 
the required work to ensure that the spend 
of local, key organisations is targeted to 
ensure maximum social value and, where 
possible, developing and increasing 
networks of local supply.

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

The Committee are aware that the 
city-wide procurement charter is 
also supportive of such an approach 
to procurement and contract 
management across the operations 
of key organisations in the City. 
There are five key objectives 
within the Charter:

• Develop and grow a skilled   
 workforce

• Encourage health lifestyles 
 and independence 

• Support more people to be 
 active in their communities

• Support business to develop 
 and grow

• Support the reduction of the 
 carbon footprint

P
age 52



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 13

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

2 City of Wolverhampton Council: Our City: Our Plan: February 2022 

The Committee considers that to fully recognise the objectives 
of the Wolverhampton Pound and those in the Our City: Our Plan, 
collaboration will be paramount both internally and externally 
across all partner and anchor institutions.

The Committee consider that the objectives detailed in the 
Our City: Our Plan should be included in tender documentation 
and communicated widely to both existing and potential suppliers 
during any pre- procurement communication and activity.

The Committee are pleased that reference to the Wolverhampton 
Pound has now been included in the new Our City: Our Plan as 
a means of achieving a Thriving Economy in all parts of the City:

Leverage the Wolverhampton Pound’s spending power so 
millions more are spent in our City to create job and business 
opportunities.2

P
age 53



14 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

Green Paper, Transforming Public Procurement 

In December 2020, the Cabinet Office set out proposals for 
changing the shape of public procurement legislation with the 
publication of a Green Paper, Transforming Public Procurement3. 
The overarching objectives of the paper are to speed up and 
simplify procurement processes, place value for money at their 
heart, generate social value and unleash opportunities for small 
businesses, charities and social enterprises.

3 Cabinet Office, Transforming Public Procurement: December 2020

The Green Paper and subsequent National Procurement Policy Statement 
(NPPSs) provide a more flexible process for procurement supported in part 
by the UK now being outside of the EU’s legislative framework.

The Green paper and NPPSs are clear that local authorities no longer have 
to accept the lowest bid but can now take a broader view of bids received 
to include areas such as social value. The paper also places an emphasis 
on small to mid-size enterprises (SMEs), voluntary and community sector 
suppliers and ensuring transparency, integrity and the fair treatment of 
suppliers.P

age 54



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 15

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

Introduction of compulsory competitive tendering.
Procurement of private contracts notably expended.
Significant outsourcing of service delivery by government departments and local authorities.

Successful governments, both Conservative and Labour, introduced various legislation to encourage more 
public-private partnerships and the use of external suppliers in public services – to achieve cost-savings
and improvements.
Most significant of this legislation was the private finance initiative (PFI) – whereby private entities design,
develop, finance and operate public projects.

The Coalition government backed and promoted the development and implementation of EU procurement reforms
on the basis that public procedure had become overly complex and was not providing value for money. 
There were also several domestic reforms to public procurement.  Most notably, the Social Value Act 2012 and
the Small Business, Enterprise and Employment Act 2015 – the latter of which allowing the Cabinet Office the
power to regulate the procurement activity of other public bodies.

The COVID-19 pandemic saw government outsourcing and procurement increase in the unique demands of the
crisis Central government has been particularly active and is often criticised.
Local authorities also used procurement to considerable effect – applying supplier relief to business, sourcing
PPE and providing support to those dealing with emerging issues.
However, the response to the pandemic through procurement highlighted the lack of effective coordination,
strong accountability structures and transparency that has resulted in a grave amount of wasted public money.

PFI expanded by New Labour through various infrastructure projects and public private partnership (PPP) scheme 
were introduced.
After the 2006 financial crash, the government adopted ten ‘procurement for growth’ principles geared towards 
analysing markets, taking account of supply chain opportunities and the involvement of more SME's.

Source: LoCallis – True Value Towards Ethical Public Service Commissioning

1980’s 

1990’s 

2000’s 

2010’s 

2020’s 

Public Procurement TimelinePublic Procurement Timeline

P
age 55



16 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

The Committee consider that the role 
of procurement within the Council 
needs to change significantly if the values 
and ambitions embedded within the 
Wolverhampton Pound are to be realised 
and the opportunities afforded in the 
Green Paper are to be capitalised upon. 

At the moment, the procurement team 
is a centralised function which is seen by 
many as back office, administrative support. 
The Procurement team currently carries 
out the following functions:

• Leading on procurement strategy

• Advising on the best route to market 
to support services to meet their 
operational needs and Council 
strategies

• Maximising value for money for 
the residents of Wolverhampton

• Ensuring compliance with Contract 
Procedure Rules and Public Contract 
Regulations 2015

• Ensuring equal treatment and 
transparency in all Procurement activity

The Committee understand that recruitment and retention of staff is an ongoing challenge, 
particularly in relation to higher skilled, experienced officers. Team members are under 
significant pressure due to constant deadlines with limited time to plan ahead and operate 
at a more strategic level. There is a heavy reliance on interim staff which means that there 
can be critical losses of important knowledge when these staff leave, creating limited 
opportunities for learning and development internally. High turn around and shortages of 
senior level procurenment officers can have a significant knock on effect for other departments 
in the Council where very high level, high value procurement activites take place. Any significant 
delays in these procurement activites can have a negative impact on the Council, the City 
and our citizens.

The issues relating to recruitment are linked to huge skills shortages in both the public and 
private sector, with existing skills being further eroded due to an over reliance on the use of 
frameworks. At the moment the Council is just not able to compete with the compensation 
packages available for interim appointments and consultant fees. 

The Committee welcome and encourage the prospect of growing our own procurement 
staff through the procurement buyers and procurement apprentice posts and the training 
being made available to move team members up to a professional standard through the 
Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply Diploma. The Committee do however 
consider that the Council should enter into conversation with the University to identify any 
students coming towards the end of their studies who may be looking for employment in 
the procurement field. The Committee suggest that this might include students studying law 
degrees, but understand that the required qualification for procurement is not currently offered 
by the University. The Committee consider that the possibility of providing this qualification in 
the future should form part of the discussions with the University as one of the Anchor Network 
members. The Committee would also welcome any opportunity to engage with partners to utilise 
their skills and resource in areas such as procurement to help deliver major capital schemes.

P
age 56



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 17

New Approaches to Procurement and Contract Management

The Committee consider that a cultural change is required throughout 
the Council to move procurement into a strategic, change making position. 
Procurement needs to be able to be proactive rather than reactive, and to 
have the resources available to strategically move the Council from being 
overly reliant on frameworks to a better mix of options that will open the 
market to smaller and more local businesses and suppliers. 
The Committee understand that to achieve this, change needs to happen 
across the Council; contract managers need to have the skills, expertise 
and confidence to manage their contracts and liaise with their existing 
and potential suppliers. Contract Managers will need to consider areas 
such as pre procurement engagement, post implementation monitoring 
and social value matters in all of their procurement and contract 
management processes. 

By adopting a strategic role, procurement can start to take a 
longer term, partnership-based approach, working closely with 
stakeholders such as the Anchor Network representatives and 
with internal departments and teams, to identify synergies and 
economies of scale which will help to reduce duplication and bring 
spend down. This new approach will allow for great collaboration 
and co-production in the procurement process and for real 
consideration to be given as to which supplier really is best placed 
to provide the service or goods in light of the Wolverhampton 
Pound and Our City: Our Plan objectives.

P
age 57



18 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Resources

The Committee understand that moving away from a 
framework reliant system is more resource heavy and 
may require additional recruitment. Breaking down larger 
contracts into lots, to encourage more local firms to enter 
the process is welcome but will create a much larger number 
of contracts that will need to be managed and procured. 
As such, the Committee are supportive of the proposal 
to consider using market forces supplements in the short 
term to recruit to the more senior posts whilst at the same 
time continuing to develop our own staff through the 
apprentice and procurement buyers posts and the Diploma. 
When considering the recruitment and retention of staff, the 
Committee suggest that it may be beneficial to go beyond 
the standard compensation package. This should include 
highlighting the the less tangible elements that make working 
for the City of Wolverhampton Council special using the 
website to highlight and promote this.

Resources

In relation to the Diploma and any other such training packages that the 
Council makes available to employees, the Committee suggest that a clause 
be added so that should the employee leave within a certain amount of time 
after studying the qualification, that all or part of the fee for the course be 
reimbursed to the Council on an incremental basis. The Committee are 
however aware that this would only be applicable to courses run by the 
City of Wolverhampton Council and could not be applied in relation to any 
apprenticship roles. The Committee understand that conversations in relation 
to this are ongoing with the Organisational Development Team, Legal Team 
and relevant service areas. The Committee agree that it is essential that any 
such process be compliant and transparent.

The Committee also recommend that the Council investigate any available 
opportunities to engage with partners in relation to recruitment, and to utilise 
their skills and resources in areas such as procurement to help deliver major 
capital schemes. Partners in this instance may include the Cabinet Office and 
Homes England. The Committee consider it important that the Anchor Network 
maintain good communication with such partners.

P
age 58



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 19

Cross Department Working

In order to achieve the ambitions of the Wolverhampton 
Pound, it is clear that there needs to be greater 
cross departmental working within the Council. 
The Committee notes that there is currently some 
disconnect between the work carried out by the 
Procurement and Commercial teams, the Strategy 
and Policy team, Public Health, Commissioning and 
the Regeneration teams. 
Throughout the evidence sessions, it has become 
clear that that the reach of the Wolverhampton 
Pound will need to span a large number of 
processes and areas if it is to be successful:

• Procurement

• Strategy

• Commissioning and design 
of the product or service

• Business engagement

• Tendering

• Delivery

• Contract management (inc. Legal)

• Monitoring 

Cross Departmental Working

The Committee recognises and 
commends the work being carried 
out in the individual teams. However, 
in order to meet the challenges 
put forward by the Wolverhampton 
Pound, more consistency in approach 
and coordination is required. The 
Committee also note the importance 
of having a comprehensive picture and 
understanding of the national business 
landscape. 

The Committee welcome the work 
currently being carried out in relation to 
the formulation of a Business Directory 
for jobs and skills. The Directory will help 
and enable providers to be signed up to 
the  e-procurement system and for local 
suppliers to be better identified when 
seeking local quotes. 

The Regeneration team will also need 
to understand from any pre procurement 
engagement, what support and skills 

local businesses or organisations 
require in order to enter into the 
procurement process. This can then 
be fed into the new IGNITE initiative. 

The Committee therefore recommend 
that to provide coordination and 
consistency of approach across 
all departments, that a new post be 
created to lead on the operational 
implementation of the Wolverhampton 
Pound initiative and to ensure that the 
objectives of the Wolverhampton Pound 
are fully recognised and embedded 
in the day-to-day work of the Council 
moving forwards. The Committee 
recommend that senior officers from 
within the relevant departments work 
together to understand where this 
post should sit within the organisation 
and the details as to the job sepcification 
and grade. 

P
age 59



20 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

The Procurement Pipeline

The Committee are supportive of the 
work being carried out in relation to 
the Procurement Pipeline and note the 
vital role tha this piece of work will play 
in enabling the early identification of 
contracts coming up for tender. This 
early identification will in turn enable 
pre procurement exercises to begin 
in sufficient time to ensure that SMEs 
and VCS groups can be communicated 
with and where required provided with 
sufficient support and advice to enable 
them to enter into the procurement 
process if appropriate. 

Given the importance of the pipeline, 
the Committee recommend that it be 
kept under review and monitored on 
a regular basis through the scrutiny 
process. 

The Procurement Pipeline

The Committee note that the Anchor Network 
partners will also be producing pipelines for their 
own organisations and that under the ‘Building an 
entrepreneurial and generative society’4 workstream, 
there is an activity to produce a joint procurement and 
commissioning pipeline. The Committee consider that 
this combined pipeline will be crucial in embedding the 
commitments of the Wolverhampton Pound moving 
forwards. The Pipeline will also allow the Council and 
it’s partners to identify synergies and economies 
of scale across the City and allow for the greatest 
collaboration and coproduction possible. 

The Committee recommend that when the Pipeline 
is published, at least three upcoming contracts be 
identified to be used as pilot contracts for the new 
approaches to procurement and the Wolverhampton 
Pound and that a report in relation to these and the 
ongoing management of the contracts be presented 
to the relevant Scrutiny Panel. 

4 Relighting Our City ‘together’  action plan Embedding Community Wealth Building in Wolverhampton

P
age 60



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 21

Social Value and Ethical Considerations

One of the main objectives of the Wolverhampton Pound is 
to embed social value in the City to help leverage local spend 
and employment and make the City the best it can be for our 
communities. 

The Government’s intentions for post EU public procurement 
were outlined in the Transforming Public Procurement Green 
Paper published in December 2020 and referred to earlier. 

The Green Paper was followed by a National Procurement 
Policy Statement (NPPS) in June 2021 which sets out that 
all contracting authorities should consider the following 
national priority outcomes alongside any additional local 
priorities in their procurement activities: 

• creating new businesses, new jobs and new skills

• tackling climate change and reducing waste, and 

• improving supplier diversity, innovation and resilience.

 
The Levelling Up White Paper published in January 2022 
places social value and procurement as a key enabler of 
Government ambitions to increase productivity and reduce 
regional inequalities.  

Social Value and Ethical Considerations

The Committee understand that the Council is developing a new 
approach to social value and developing a strategy that will outline 
a set of social value outcomes, aligned to the key priorities of the 
Our City: Our Plan. 

Aligned to this strategy will be a Social Value Framework which will 
set out the Council’s priorities and some of the activities that the Council 
would like to see from contractors when developing their social value 
proposals. This will include financial proxy values for these activities to 
ensure an objective and transparent approach to scoring of social value. 
The Committee welcome the use of objective and transparent measures 
to monitor the social value outputs and impacts once a contract has been 
awarded and monitoring of these measures and KPIs should be reported 
back to Scrutiny on a regular basis.  

A bespoke Social Value Toolkit will also be provided with information 
about further tools, guidance and contacts that may be helpful in 
supporting potential contractors to develop meaningful social value 
proposals.

The Committee understand that there will also be a refreshed City Charter. 
The Wolverhampton City Charter was originally launched by City Board in 
2013 and sets out key priorities for procurement and commissioning activity 
in the City. As part of the new approach to social value the charter will be 
refreshed.

P
age 61



22 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Social Value and Ethical Considerations

The Committee support the principles underlying 
the work being carried out in relation to social value:

• Targeted - Social value approach must align and 
support delivery of the outcomes in the Our City: 
Our Plan. 

• Efficient – The resources the Council and stakeholders 
spend on identifying, requesting, assessing, securing 
and monitoring additional social value should be 
proportionate to the additional social value that 
can be secured.

• Fair and Inclusive – Particular efforts should be made 
to encourage and support applications from a diverse 
range of individuals and organisations. 

• Objective and Consistent – Robust financial proxy 
values alongside clear qualitative criteria for scoring 
and assessment so that there is a consistent 
approach to decisions.  

• Transparent – The social value framework will be 
documented and published setting out, how social 
value will be assessed. 

• Monitored – Social value requirements are consistently 
and routinely monitored through an embedded system 
of robust contract management.

The Committee are wholly supportive of this approach and welcome the 
introduction of the strategy, framework, working principles and toolkit. 

The Committee consider that any social value priorities must be collaboratively 
considered, co-designed and produced with communities and other stakeholders 
such as the VCS, so that any themes, outcomes and measures are specific 
and relate directly to Wolverhampton and our citizens. The Committee are 
also mindful that the social values agreed to and included in any procurement 
process remain relevant throughout the whole process and not just at the start 
and that they be constantly referred back to during any contract monitoring 
to ensure that the required value is being achieved. 

The Committee note that the objectives and aims in the new Our City: Our Plan 
have been widely consulted on with communities and all partner organisations 
including the VCS and recommend that any social value or ehtical priorities 
relating to procurement and contract management link to the objectives in 
the refreshed Our City: Our Plan.

As well as the very welcome approach to social value, the Committee consider 
that matters of ethical procurement could also be included as part of the new 
procurement process. It may be that a supplier is able to evidence high social 
value and impact but may have an ethical stance that is not consistent with 
that of the Council or our City. Ethical considerations may include ensuring that 
payment terms of no more than 30 days are cascaded through the supply chain 
or that a supplier has a robust equality, diversity and inclusion policy or a gender 
equal pay policy.

P
age 62



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 23

Contract Managemrnt

Good contract management will involve ensuring that there is 
accountability for agreements made throughout the procurement 
process. This will include any pre procurement engagement or activity, 
administration of the contract itself, delivery or implementation of what 
has been contracted for and the ongoing relationship management 
between the contract manager and the service or goods provider. 
Improvements to contract management and the use of the proposed 
new digital approaches to monitor contracts are welcomed by the 
Committee as a means to ensure that value for money, social value 
and ethical considerations are embedded and monitored through 
the life of the contract. 

The Committee consider that early engagement is of vital importance 
and that improved cross departmental working with partners will 
be required for this. This activity should include targeted early 
engagement with SMEs and VCS organisations. Events such as ‘meet 
the buyer’ are examples of such engagement and will enable potential 
suppliers to understand what opportunities are coming through the 
pipeline and what will be expected of them in terms of social value 
and ethical considerations. The Committee therefore recommend 
that steps be taken to ensure that a structured and consistent 
approach is developed in relation to pre procurement supplier 
engagement.   

Contract Management

As well as seeking to engage with new potential suppliers, the 
Committee are mindful as to the importance of maintaining 
ongoing dialogue and relationships with existing suppliers. 

Early engagement with suppliers and good communication may 
also start to generate new and innovative approaches to service 
provision and the supply of goods, and will provide space and 
time to really consider what we are commissioning. As has already 
been noted, the situation that we find ourselves in at the moment 
is unprecedented and the solutions required may not yet have 
been developed. By working with potential suppliers prior to the 
development of the tender document and by starting with the issue 
that needs to be addressed, innovative models of service provision 
or new technological solutions may start to emerge to the benefit 
of all. Such ways of working will also help to enhance the reputation 
of the Council as a progressive organisation rather than a more 
passive contract provider. 

The Committee are however aware that under current legislation, 
co-production with suppliers can be challenging as the Council 
must ensure that there remains a level playing field for all bidders 
and that all bidders are treated equally. Care must be taken to ensure 
and to make clear, that early engagement by a supplier or service 
provider in the pre procurement process, does not guarantee any 
preferential consideration at the procurement stage.

P
age 63



24 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Contract Managemrnt

Linking in with the Relighting our City strategy and the levelling 
up agenda, the Committee also consider that additional focus 
could be given to targeting existing and potential suppliers 
in areas of greater deprivation or areas that have been more 
adversely impacted by the pandemic. Feedback from these 
suppliers can then help to further inform the Social Value 
priorities and framework. 

The Committee welcome the ongoing review and improvements 
being put forward in relation to contract management and the 
drive to make the process as transparent and visible as possible. 
Improvements will include developing the capability, skills 
and knowledge of contract managers; and reviewing current 
methods and practices to encourage innovation and change. 
At a more strategic level this will also include linking in with the 
Wolverhampton Pound, the Relighting our City Programme, 
the MTFS and the Social Value Strategy.

Developing
high performing

cultures

Embedding
digital

approaches

Improving
service

management

The Committee is pleased that training is being carried out for contract 
managers and that attendance and information in relation to this is being 
collated and fed back through the Government Commercial Function, 
which is providing the training. The Committee welcome the fact that 
290 officers have now been identified as requiring training (213 due to 
their role and 77 as part of their professional development). The Committee 
recommend that feedback in relation to the training and ongoing monitoring 
of its effectiveness be reported on a regular basis to the relevant Scrutiny 
Panel. The Committee also consider that bespoke inhouse training should 
be investigated to complement the existing offer and to focus on the 
elements of the Wolverhampton Pound. This training should be mandatory 
for all budget managers as part of their induction. 

The Committee welcome the introduction of the contract management 
framework and toolkit and are satisfied that the management board 
that has developed these represents a diverse selection of the Council’s 
workforce. This level of diversity is vital as different departments and 
areas work in slightly different ways, construction for example will be 
different from service provision and it is vital that all of these considerations 
are incorporated into our plans and frameworks moving forwards. 

The Committee recognise that effective and efficient contract management 
will be fundamental for the ongoing and long-term success of the 
Wolverhampton Pound. Good execution of the areas highlighted in the 
overview diagram below and in particular a more visible and accessible 
process, will be vital in encouraging and supporting smaller local 
businesses into the marketplace.

P
age 64



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 25

Contract Managemrnt

The Committee consider that 
careful and effective monitoring 
of the improved contract 
management processes should 
be undertaken, and regular 
updates provided to scrutiny. 
Updates to scrutiny should 
provide a strategic oversight 
of contracts along with the 
following information:

• how and where social value is 
being achieved and measured 

• figures in relation to how 
we are retaining increased 
economic wealth 

• information on new job creation

• how we are ensuring value 
for money throughout the 
procurement and contract 
management process

• updates on training for contract 
and service managers

• successes to be celebrated

The Committee consider that to support this 
monitoring, a number of key performance 
indicators (KPIs) be agreed. These KPI’s should 
include both quantitative and qualitative so that 
real, tangible progress can be measured and a 
clear understanding of what is and what isn’t 
working achieved. 

The Committee hopes that through this 
monitoring, successes can be showcased and 
celebrated which the Committee hopes will then 
encourage new, local businesses to enter the 
supply chain.  

A complete overview of contract management

Contract
Amendments

Audit &
reporting

Contract
requests

Authoring

Negotiations

ApprovalExecution

Obligation
Management

Renewals

Contract Management
is about visibilty

A Complete Overview of 
Contract Management

Improved ICT System

The Committee welcome the drive to improve 
ICT systems. The Committee understand that 
this will enable the provision of data and 
dashboards to improve contract management 
and monitoring and will be able to highlight areas 
for possible synergies or where additional support 
is required for more complex contracts. The 
Committee understand that the improved ICT 
systems will also enable the identification of trends 
and allow officers to monitor the performance 
of suppliers and contract managers.

P
age 65



26 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Barriers to Procurement

The Committee consider that good contract management 
should be able to mitigate some of the barriers that business 
representatives highlighted as prohibitive to entering the 
marketplace.

The Committee heard evidence from a number of local business 
representative who were very welcoming of the improvements 
that they had witnessed in the Council’s approach to business 
support, contract management and procurement over the past 
few years. However, they also highlighted a number of areas 
as barriers to engagement.

Barriers to Procurement 1. Communication

Once the pipeline is in place it will be vital to have an excellent 
communication strategy ready to advertise and communicate upcoming 
contract opportunities and let the City know that the Council is open for 
business. This will require a properly set out pre-procurement process 
that enables market engagement and consultation at the earliest possible 
stage. Pre-procurement must involve detailed sharing of information to 
prospective bidders regarding how the successful applicant will be expected 
to adhere to or be measured in relation to social value, KPIs (qualitative 
and quantitative) or ethical standards (environmental, living wage, EDI etc.). 
The process for the evaluation of bids must also be open, transparent and 
available to prospective applicants at this early stage. The Committee are 
however aware that this can be challenging as early market engagement 
is used to enable stakeholders and procurement to plan the best route to 
market. Due to this, some of the information referred to may not be available 
until after the engagement has taken place. The Committee understand 
that early market engagement in relation to strategically important contracts 
is standard but to conduct this type of engagement for all activity would 
require additional resources

Market consultation at this early stage will also help to get businesses ready 
to bid and to ascertain whether there are any barriers that are in their way 
such as a lack of digital expertise or ability to actually put the bid in online 
and whether extra support or training is required to guide them through 
the bidding process. 

P
age 66



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 27

Barriers to Procurement

2. Inconsistent application of policy 

The Committee understands that many smaller 
businesses encounter inconsistencies in their 
dealings with different Council departments which 
can be confusing and prohibitive. The Committee 
recommend that a new and consistent approach 
be considered for when SMEs or partners from 
the VCS are contacting the council in relation 
to tendering or procurement activities. This new 
process must be communicated clearly to all 
potential suppliers in adequate time before the 
tender process commences. The Committee 
understands that there can also be inconsistencies 
regarding which officers the SMEs or VCS 
representatives find themselves speaking to 
and that this can also lead to inconsistent 
information being provided. The Committee 
consider that having a single point of contact 
for the procurement and contract management 
processes will be of benefit and mitigate this 
inconsistency and uncertainty. Again, this 
information needs to be made clearly available on 
the Council’s website and widely communicated. 

3. Overly Bureaucratic and inconsistent Processes 

The Committee heard that businesses and especially smaller businesses found the 
paperwork and processes to be followed regarding entering the marketplace, very 
prohibitive and at times overly expensive and very time consuming. The Committee 
recommend that the current processes be assessed and where possible, streamlined to 
reduce the amount of forms or questions required and to ensure that they are appropriate 
for the contract being put forward. Moving to an online process is welcomed but many 
smaller businesses are struggling to negotiate the online process and therefore additional 
digital skills training should be provided. The Committee understand that many small 
businesses do want to put in bids for public sector contracts but consider that they do 
not have the required skills, resources or knowledge to be able to do so. The Committee 
understand that there is already an online procurement portal but suggest that this be 
enhanced where possible and given greater visibility on the Council’s public website. The 
pipeline should be accessible from the portal and it should enable alerts and to be set up 
by suppliers for when contracts of a certain type became available. Suppliers should be 
able to upload their standard information here once, rather than for each new contract 
thus saving a considerable amount of time filling in numerous pre procurement 
questionnaires. Such a resources would also be beneficial to the Council as it would 
enable the identification of possible suppliers for new goods or services early on in the 
process and link in directly with any pre procurement engagement and publicity. Case 
studies relating to successful bids could also be uploaded to the portal and links for 
training opportunities or skills workshops advertised. 

The business and skills directory will also be key to help ensure that providers register 
their details here. The Committee do recognise the challenges and risks associated with 
the provision of information on a less regular basis. The Committee understand that for 
contracts above the threshold spend, specific information is required under law such 
as the Standard Selection Questionnaire. The Committee understand that the level of 
risk associated with a contractor will increase in line with the amount of time that has 

P
age 67



28 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Barriers to Procurement

elapsed since information is uploaded. The Committee suggest that 
work be undertaken to investigate and balance this risk and agree 
how often information such as the Standard Selection Questionnaire 
(SSQ) should be required from suppliers. The Committee recommend 
that a working group be set up to discuss these issues, and that this 
group include representatives from legal, audit and risk, procurement, 
commercial and governance. 

4. Provision of detailed feedback 

The Committee heard that reasons as to why a bid had failed 
were not always communicated back to the potential supplier. The 
Committee consider that this is vital and should be an integral part 
of the procurement and contract management process. By providing 
constructive feedback and engaging with unsuccessful suppliers, the 
council can start to fully understand the skills and support that small 
businesses or voluntary and community organisations are currently 
lacking and start to put processes in place to help fill these knowledge 
and skills gaps. The Committee understand that Procurement already 
provide debrief letters for the majority of procurement exercieses and 
that these letters are mandatory for contracts over a specific threshold. 
The Committee undertand that debrief letters are not currently provided 
in relation to quotes and that should this be recommended, then 
additional resources will be required. The Committee are also aware 
that such debrief letters will not be specific to local suppliers as 
national and international suppliers are also able to put bids forward. 

5. Liability Insurance

The Committee understand that in some cases liability insurance 
in local government contracts can have an adverse impact on 
competition and appear prohibitive for small businesses which might 
otherwise consider entering the procurement process. The Committee 
understand that the council must take a number of considerations 
into account when deciding whether, and to what extent, contractor 
liability should be limited or excluded. The Committee understand that 
it is important to ensure that the issues of liability and insurance take 
account of relevant factors including value for money. The Committee 
suggest that the Council investigate the current procedures in relation 
to liability insurance and that where the suggested levels of insurance 
are not considered appropriate, they may be either raised or lowered. 
It might, for example, be considered that the level of insurance in 
some instances should be lowered, as the cost to the contractor 
could be prohibitive. The Committee do however recognise that in 
these circumstances, the Council will have to accept that if loss or 
damage occurs in excess of the insured limit, and the contractor 
cannot fund the difference, then the Council will be accepting that 
additional risk. 

The Committee consider that the approach taken in respect of 
liability can be an important determinant in whether or not a contractor 
bids for a contract. It is important therefore that contract managers 
in consultation with procurement, legal and insurance services team, 
consider these issues as early as possible in the procurement process.

P
age 68



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 29

Risk and Miigation | Voluntary and Community Sector Engagement

Risks and Mitigation

The Committee heard evidence from the Voluntary and Community Sector 
(VCS). The Committee is very impressed with the amount and quality of work 
carried out by the sector and applaud the commitment of the volunteers and 
staff who are going above and beyond on a regular basis to help and support 
some of the most vulnerable people in our City. 

The Committee welcome the improved and ongoing consultation and 
engagement that has taken place to help shape the City priorities included 
in the Our City: Our Plan and the establishment of ward funds to help target 
specific local issues, build resilience, and reduce demand on services. 
The Committee understands that the Cross Sector Forum has been 
critical in influencing and facilitating activity across the system including:

• Raising the profile of the Voluntary and Community 
sector in the City

• Developing a framework to embed co-production 
in everything they do

• Contributing to the development of training programmes 
for VCS groups to access opportunities to bid for funding

• Contributing to the development of Social Value principles 
and the Wolverhampton Pound framework

Voluntary and Community Sector 
EngagementDuring the engagement session with local business 

representatives, some concerns were expressed in relation 
to balancing the opening up of the marketplace with the 
management of risk and due diligence. The Committee 
note and take on board these concerns and understand 
that greater flexibility in procedures, more non-standard 
approaches to procurement, social value driven rather 
that tangible outcome based approaches and the possibility 
of awarding contracts to smaller companies with less 
experience, may open the Council up to legal challenge 
should a new supplier or provider not be able to follow 
through on their contractual obligations. 

The Committee is mindful that as a local authority, the 
Council is accountable to the public for the money that 
is spent on procurement. The Committee is however 
also conscious that the Council should not be overly risk 
adverse and seek to balance any identified risks against 
the potential benefits for the City, our citizens and the 
Council. The Committee consider that in all cases due 
diligence must continue to be carried out and that the 
proposed improvements in contract management, 
engagement and monitoring will further ensure that 
all contractual obligations are met. 

P
age 69



30 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Voluntary and Community Sector Engagement

The Committee understands that the Cross Sector Forum are 
currently collating the results of a survey recently undertaken in 
partnership with the University to help inform future objectives and 
priorities for the sector and highlight gaps in the VCS landscape in 
relation to procurement and commissioning provision. As previously 
stated, the Committee welcomes coproduction but care must be 
taken to ensure that processes are carried out in a fair way that 
is open to all.

The Committee understands that there are many small grass roots 
organisations that want to engage with the Council and that they 
have a wealth of information and experience that will be of great 
benefit to us. Asset mapping is considered a key area of work that 
is ongoing, as they are many small groups in the City not currently 
recognised and who may not even realise that what they are 
doing is volunteering. 

Leadership is strong in the sector; innovations and ongoing 
development keep business plans evolving and the infrastructure 
transformative. If the market that is needed doesn’t exist then it can 
be created through communication, collaboration and coproduction.

The Committee notes that visible leadership is evident in relation to 
the VCS, with the Deputy Chief Executive acting as Voluntary Sector 
Champion and the establishment of a voluntary sector councillor 
champion. The Committee consider that similar visible leadership 
could be used to promote the Wolverhampton Pound at both 
councillor level and officer level and that a champion from both 
areas should be appointed to raise awareness and champion the 
work being done. These champions will provide visible leadership at 
the highest levels and help to raise the profile of the Wolverhampton 
Pound to local businesses, the VCS and our communities. 

As already considered in this paper, the VCS highlighted the 
importance of engagement, communication and pre procurement 
activity as vital areas of work that have enabled the them to shape 
and co-produce many of the services they provide. The Committee 
understands that communication and pre procurement are essential 
and that when designing any social value framework or approach, 
it must not come from the top down but start with the communities 
and work up. 

P
age 70



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 31

Voluntary and Community Sector Engagement

The Committee do however understand that a good market mix 
is desirable with SMEs, VCS and larger organisations all working 
together. The grass roots organisations might not have the required 
infrastructure to keep going on their own but they can provide 
the diverse and knowledgeable workforces that can be of benefit 
to the larger organisations and vice versa. At the moment it is a 
priority for the VCS to support the grass roots organisations to 
help them become sustainable and able to thrive again following 
the pandemic. A lot of the required support for this can come from 
the larger organisations such as the Council and other Anchors. 
The Committee are also aware, following evidence provided by 
the business support team and the VCS representatives, that larger 
organisations can provide a lot of social value and social impact 
in the City and for our communities. Large major suppliers can 
work with the Council to develop work programmes which will link 
in with many of our priorities and interests. This could include 
bringing in local firms or the VCS as sub-contractors to provide a 
specific service or working with schools, colleges or universities on 
skills provision in the medium and long term or in the provision of 
apprenticeships and work placements. 

The Committee are however mindful that where any sub-contracting 
does take place that this is carried out ethically and that payments 
made to the VCS are at market value and that adequate resourcing 

for the required work is provided by the major supplier. The 
Committee also note the frustration faced by the sector around 
some national providers delivering or duplicating services in the City 
with little benefit to the sector. The Committee consider that areas 
such as this can be picked up by the new contract management 
system where organisations may be required to provide information 
as to who they are sub contracting with.

One large area of work currently being addressed by the VCS 
is how to change the face of volunteering. The Committee understands 
that there is a need to attract volunteers from all stages of life and 
from as many diverse backgrounds as possible. Work is ongoing to 
consider how to motivate people to become volunteers and to show 
that volunteering can be the pathway into employment. 

The Committee considers that the work being carried out by the 
VCS is exceptional and that it needs to be communicated further 
and more regularly. Therefore, the Committee recommend that 
regular reports in relation to the work of the VCS be provided to 
Scrutiny Board or the All-Councillor briefings.

The Committee also recommend that consideration be given as to 
whether the VCS might have a place on the Anchor Network and 
that if this is not possible, that processes be put in place to ensure 
that the VCS is regularly and routinely consulted by the Network.

P
age 71



32 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Conclusion | Next Steps

The landscape of procurement and contract management is 
changing; no longer must they be considered as administrative 
back-office functions but heralded as changemaking, strategic 
tools with the potential to significantly improve the lives of the 
people of Wolverhampton. 

How we procure and who we procure with affects everything 
that we do, and the work carried out during the select committee 
process has shown how much of an impact the objectives of the 
Wolverhampton Pound can have for our City and our citizens. 

With committed political leadership, director level engagement, 
genuine cross departmental working and a Council wide 
understanding of the impact that good procurement can have, 
real change is now possible. 

The recommendations and findings contained in the report show 
that with a progressive approach to procurement and contract 
management, comes innovation, creativity and the commissioning 
of services and products that are right for our City and our citizens. 
One size does not fit all and good communication and engagement 
with our partners, the VCS, existing suppliers, and potential suppliers 
will allow us to ensure that we are procuring the right goods and 
the rights services in the right way for us. 

Conclusion

Moving forward, the Council will seek to lead by example alongside 
our Anchor Network partners. The new approaches to procurement 
and contract management recommended throughout this report will 
be vital in supporting and achieving the ambitions and aims of the 
Wolverhampton Pound. Achieving a combined Anchor pipeline will 
enable early and increased identification of where skills and knowledge 
are required and ensure that adequate training and support can be 
put in place to ensure that our local businesses and VCS partners 
have a level and fair platform from which to enter into the marketplace. 

The Committee consider that as we continue on this journey, that 
clear guidance needs to be provided so that there is a comprehensive 
understanding of how the internal work being carried out by the 
Council and our internal structures; will link in and align with the work 
and the structures of the Anchor Network. The Committee request 
that representatives from the Anchor Network provide an update to 
Scrutiny as to how the objectives of the Wolverhampton Pound are 
being met, what progress has been made in relation to recruitment 
to the posts recommended by CLES, how its structures are aligned 
to work with partner organisations including the Council and the 
expectations of the network moving forwards.

The Committee would like to thank everyone that attended 
the evidence sessions and commend all the hard work that 
the Council is undertaking to relight our City. 

Next Steps

P
age 72



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 33

Recommendations

1. That the Council enter dialogue with 
the University in relation to identifying 
any students nearing the end of their 
studies who may be interested in a 
role in procurement.

2. That opportunities be considered in 
relation to engaging with partners to 
utilise their skills and resources in areas 
such as procurement to help deliver 
major capital schemes.

3. That the Council enter dialogue with 
the University, College and other local 
providers, in relation to providing 
the Chartered Institute of Procurement 
and Supply Diploma qualification. 

4. That the Council investigate using 
market forces supplements in the 
short term to recruit to the more 
senior posts whilst at the same time 
ensuring that clear succession planning 
is in place by continuing to develop our 
own staff through the apprentice and 
procurement buyers posts and 
the Diploma.

Recommendations

5. That a clause be added when a 
qualification is undertaken and funded 
by the Council, that should the employee 
leave within a certain amount of time 
after studying, that all or part of the 
fee for the course be reimbursed.

6. That when advertising for procurement 
roles, the Council go beyond the normal 
compensation package. This should 
also include highlighting the less tangible 
elements that make working for the 
City of Wolverhampton Council special 
and using the website to highlight and 
promote this.

7. That to provide coordination and 
consistency of approach across all 
departments, that resources for the 
Wolverhampton Pound initiative are 
reviewed by officers, and that additional 
capacity is identified to ensure delivery 
against this key priority. 

8. That the Procurement Pipeline be kept 
under review and monitored on a regular 
basis through the relevant scrutiny panels.

9. That when the Pipeline is published, 
at least three upcoming contracts be 
identified to be used as pilots for the 
new approaches to procurement and 
the Wolverhampton Pound and that 
a report in relation to these and the 
ongoing management of the contracts 
be monitored through the scrutiny 
process.

10. That any social value and ethical 
priorities relating to procurement link 
to the Our City: Our Plan and that 
there be a refresh of the Council 
social value strategy. 

11. The Committee suggest that a 
working group be set up to investigate 
and balance areas of risk in relation 
to the procurement process and 
where processes might be streamlined 
and areas such as liability insurance 
reduced. The working group should 
include representatives form legal, 
procurement, audit and risk and 
governance.

P
age 73



34 wolverhampton.gov.ukCity of Wolverhampton Council

Recommendations

12. That a structured and consistent approach is developed 
in relation to co production and early market engagement.   

13. That there be mandatory training for all contract managers 
included as part of their induction process.

14. That moving forward, training be developed in house in 
relation to procurement and contract management and 
include reference to the Our City: Our Plan, Vison 2030, 
the Wolverhampton Pound, Relighting our City and the 
Social Value Framework.

15. That regular reports be provided to the Our Council 
Scrutiny Panel to include:

• how and where social value is being achieved 
and measured, 

• figures in relation to how we are retaining increased 
economic wealth 

• information on new job creation

• how we are ensuring value for money throughout 
the procurement and contract management process

• updates on training for contract and service managers

• successes to be celebrated

16. That a single point of contact for the procurement 
processes and contract management processes 
be identified. 

17. That existing application and bureaucratic processes 
be assessed and where possible, streamlined.

18. That visible leadership be used to promote the 
Wolverhampton Pound at both councillor level and officer 
level and that a champion from both areas be appointed to 
raise awareness and champion the work being done. These 
champions will provide visible leadership at the highest levels 
and help to raise the profile of the Wolverhampton Pound to 
local businesses, the VCS and our communities.

19. That regular reports in relation to the work of the VCS be 
provided to Scrutiny Board or the All-Councillor briefings to 
help to raise awareness and support for the organisations.

20. That consideration be given as to whether the VCS might 
have a place on the Anchor Network and that if this is not 
possible, that processes be put in place to ensure that the 
VCS is regularly and routinely consulted by the Network.

P
age 74



The Wolverhampton Pound - Procurement, Contract Management and Commissioning - City of Wolverhampton Council Select Committee 2022wolverhampton.gov.uk 35

Select Committee - Recommended Process Detail

Select Committee - Recommended Process Detail

Communication 
internally and 
with external 
community, 
businesses car 
providers, CVS.

Communication 
& Engagement

(Pre-Procurement)

Procurement pipeline available 
online for suppliers to view.
Engagement with and via 
Business Support team/ 
Commissioners.
Support forward planning, 
training and resources

Procurement Pipeline
(Pre-Procurement)

Training/Skills - Local 
providers and Council 
employees.
Digital/IT development
Ready to bid seminars

Contract 
Administration/Tender

(Procurement)

Communicate good 
news stories.
Case studies added 
to the portal.
Feedback on succesful bids
Education and skill develop-
ment and support identified.

Award Contract/ 
Feedback on bids

(Post Procurement/ 
Contract Management)

Contract Managers - Assess 
performance and support.
Business Support Update 
local business/forward plan.
Procurement - Procurement 
Managers to engage with 
SMEs/suppliers

Ongoing Relationship 
Management

(Post Procurement/ 
Contract Management)

All above supported by streamlined Council processes

• Online portal for Procurement and Community and Voluntary Services
• Simplified processes and ways to bid

• Streamlined application processes
• Structures in place to support including contacts for suppliers

Include CWC principles 
and values in specification.
Understand supplier 
commitments.
Outcome focused 
Maximise value for money

Social Value
(Pre-Procurement)

Remove barriers and 
bureaucracy.
Review due diligence check 
process
Support provided for 
businesses, commissioners 
and communities

Pre-Procurement 
Support

(Pre-Procurement)

Ensure a fair, open, 
transparent evaluation 
process for bids.
Assess supplier ethics.
Diversity.

Fair, Open and 
Transparent evaluation 

process/bids
(Procurement)

Implementation/mobilisation.
Metrics/KPIs to measure 
against contract including 
Social Value.
Wolverhampton Pound data.

Contract Delivery
(Post Procurement/ 
Contract Delivery)

P
age 75



W
C

C
 2

07
1 

09
.2

1wolverhampton.gov.uk   01902 551155

City of Wolverhampton Council, Civic Centre, St. Peter’s Square, 
Wolverhampton  WV1 1SH

You can get this information in large print, braille,  
audio or in another language by calling 01902 551155

WolverhamptonToday Wolverhampton_Today @WolvesCouncil

W
C

C
 2

09
3 

03
22

P
age 76



Appendix 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The Wolverhampton Pound Select Committee - Action Plan 

Recommendation Comments from Scrutiny, 
Cabinet and Council 
 

Proposed 
Action Owner 

Timescales Progress 

Recommendation 1: That the Council 
enter dialogue with the University in 
relation to identifying any students 
nearing the end of their studies who may 
be interested in a role in procurement. 
 

TBD Director of 
Strategy  
 
Director of 
Finance 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 2: That opportunities 
be considered in relation to engaging with 
partners to utilise their skills and 
resources in areas such as procurement 
to help deliver major capital schemes. 
 

TBD Director of 
Regeneration 
 
Director of 
Communications 
and External 
Relations 
 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 3: That the Council 
enter dialogue with the University, 
College and other local providers, in 
relation to providing the Chartered 
Institute of Procurement and Supply 
Diploma qualification. 
 

TBD Director of 
Strategy  
 
Director of 
Finance 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 4: That the Council 
investigate using market forces 
supplements in the short term to recruit to 
the more senior posts whilst at the same 
time ensuring that clear succession 
planning is in place by continuing to 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 
 
Director of 
Finance 
 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

P
age 77



Appendix 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

develop our own staff through the 
apprentice and procurement buyers posts 
and the Diploma 

Recommendation 5: That a clause be 
added when a qualification is undertaken 
and funded by the council, that should the 
employee leave within a certain amount 
of time after studying, that all or part of 
the fee for the course be reimbursed.  
 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 
 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 6: That when 
advertising for procurement roles, the 
Council go beyond the normal 
compensation package to also highlight 
the less tangible elements that make 
working for the City of Wolverhampton 
Council special and to use the website to 
really highlight and promote this. 
 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 
 
Deputy Director 
of People and 
Change 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 7: That to provide 
coordination and consistency of approach 
across all departments, that resources for 
the Wolverhampton Pound initiative are 
reviewed by officers, and that additional 
capacity is identified to ensure delivery 
against this key priority. 
 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 
 
Director of 
Finance 
 
Director of 
Strategy  
 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 8: That the 
Procurement Pipeline be kept under 
review and monitored on a regular basis 
through the relevant scrutiny panels. 

TBD Director of 
Finance 
 

For 
discussion 
and 

TBD 

P
age 78



Appendix 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 Head of 
Procurement 

agreement at 
Cabinet 

Recommendation 9: That when the 
Pipeline is published, at least three 
upcoming contracts be identified to be 
used as pilots for the new approaches to 
procurement and the Wolverhampton 
Pound and that a report in relation to 
these and the ongoing management of 
the contracts be monitored through the 
scrutiny process. 
 

TBD Director of 
Finance 
 
Head of 
Procurement 
 
Head of 
Commercial 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 10: That any social 
value and ethical priorities relating to 
procurement link to the Our City:Our Plan 
and that there be a refresh of the council 
social value strategy.  
 
 

TBD Director of 
Strategy  
 
Head of Policy 
and Strategy  
 
Director of 
Finance 
 
Head of 
Procurement 
 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 11: That a working 
group be set up to investigate and 
balance areas of risk in relation to the 
procurement process and where 
processes might be streamlined and 
areas such as liability insurance reduced. 
The working group should include 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

P
age 79



Appendix 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

representatives form legal, procurement, 
audit and risk and governance.  
 

Recommendation 12: That a structured 
and consistent approach is developed in 
relation to co-production and early market 
engagement. 
 

TBD Director of 
Regeneration 
 
Director of 
Finance 
 
Head of 
Procurement 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 13: That there be 
mandatory training for all contract 
managers included as part of their 
induction process. 

TBD Director of 
Strategy 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 14: That moving 
forward, training be developed in house in 
relation to procurement and contract 
management and include reference to the 
Our City: Our Plan, Vison 2030, the 
Wolverhampton Pound, Relighting our 
City and the Social Value Framework. 
 

TBD Director of 
Strategy 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 15: That regular 
reports be provided to the Our Council 
Scrutiny Panel to include: 

• how and where social value is 
being achieved and measured 

• figures in relation to how we are 
retaining increased economic 
wealth  

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer  
 
Director of 
Strategy 
 
Director of 
Finance 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

P
age 80



Appendix 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

• information on new job creation 
• how we are ensuring value for 

money throughout the 
procurement and contract 
management process 

• updates on training for contract 
and service managers 

• successes to be celebrated. 
 

 
Director of 
Regeneration 
 

Recommendation 16: That a single point 
of contact for the procurement processes 
and contract management processes be 
identified.  
 

TBD Director of 
Finance 
 
Head of 
Procurement 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 17: That existing 
application and bureaucratic processes 
be assessed and where possible, 
streamlined. 
 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 
 
Director of 
Finance 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 18: That visible 
leadership be used to promote the 
Wolverhampton Pound at both councillor 
level and officer level and that a 
champion from both areas be appointed 
to raise awareness and champion the 
work being done. These champions will 
provide visible leadership at the highest 
levels and help to raise the profile of the 
Wolverhampton Pound to local 
businesses, the VCS and our 
communities. 
 

TBD Chief Operating 
Officer 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

P
age 81



Appendix 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Recommendation 19: That regular 
reports in relation to the work of the VCS 
be provided to Scrutiny Board or the All-
Councillor briefings to help to raise 
awareness and support for the 
organisations. 
 

TBD Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 
Place Based 
Manager 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

Recommendation 20: That 
consideration be given as to whether the 
VCS might have a place on the Anchor 
Network and that if this is not possible, 
that processes be put in place to ensure 
that the VCS is regularly and routinely 
consulted by the Network.  

TBD Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 
Director of 
Strategy 
 
Anchor Network 

For 
discussion 
and 
agreement at 
Cabinet 

TBD 

 

P
age 82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate Complaints & Compliments Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate Complaints & Compliments Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 2 for Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate Complaints & Compliments Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 3 for Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate Complaints & Compliments Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 4 for Quarter 3 Social Care, Public Health, Corporate Complaints & Compliments Report 2021-2022

	5 Select Committee Report: The Wolverhampton Pound
	Appendix 1: Select Committee Report: The Wolverhampton Pound
	Appendix 2: The Wolverhampton Pound Select Committee Action Plan.docx


